
 
Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
 

 
Phil Garnett (0113 
39 51632) 

 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

A 

 

 
 
 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on 

Wednesday, 4th July, 2012 
at 2.00 pm 

 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
 

P Grahame 
N Taggart 
T Hanley 
G Hussain 
T Murray 
E Taylor 
J Illingworth 
 

J Bentley 
 

C Fox 
R Wood 
 

J Elliott 
 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded).  
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 
 

 



 

C 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
AND OTHER INTERESTS 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-18 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct.  Also to declare 
any other significant interests which the Member 
wishes to declare in the public interest, in 
accordance with paragraphs 19-20 of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES 
 
To receive any apologies for the meeting. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 23rd April 2012. 
 

1 - 6 

7   
 

  CHAIR'S REMARKS 
 
To receive any remarks which the Chair wishes to 
make.  
 

 

8   
 

  KPMG - INTERIM AUDIT REPORT 
 
To receive a report of the Director of Resources 
which identifies the findings from KPMG’s interim 
audit work in relation to the 2011/12 financial 
statements and the initial work undertaken to 
support their 2011/12 Value for Money conclusion. 
 

7 - 34 



 

D 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

9   
 

  THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2011/12 
 
To receive a report of the Director of Resources 
presenting to the Committee the 2011/12 
Statement of Accounts for Leeds City Council prior 
to them being made available for public inspection. 
 

35 - 
44 

10   
 

  ROLE OF THE PEOPLE PLAN IN CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 
 
To receive a report of the Chief Officer (Human 
Resources) providing a report outlining the role of 
the Council’s People Plan and how it aligns with 
the council’s Code of Corporate Governance in 
respect of: the appraisal process; employee 
engagement, workforce planning and control of the 
Council’s budget. 
 

45 - 
52 

11   
 

  COUNCIL HOUSING ASSURANCE 
FRAMEWORK 2011-12 
 

To receive a report of the Chief Statutory Housing 
Services Officer  providing assurance to the 
Committee of the outturn of the Assurance 
Framework for Council housing management in 
2011/12, and the ALMO commissioned audits.   

 

53 - 
64 

12   
 

  ANNUAL ASSURANCE REPORT ON RISK & 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
 
To receive a report of the  Director of Resources 
and Assistant Chief Executive, Customer Access & 
Performance providing the Committee with 
assurances on the strength of the Council’s risk 
and performance management arrangements and 
is an important source of evidence for the Annual 
Governance Statement due to be approved by the 
Committee in September.   
 

65 - 
72 

13   
 

  WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To receive a report of the Director of Resources 
notifying and inviting comment from the Committee 
on the work programme. 
 

73 - 
78 

 



 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on 4

th
 July 2012 

 

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 
 

Monday, 23rd April, 2012 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor G Driver in the Chair 

 Councillors P Grahame, C Campbell, 
G Kirkland, A Lowe, W Hyde, T Hanley, 
C Fox and G Hussain 
 

 
Apologies Councillor J Elliot and Mr Tollefson  

 
 
 
 

99 Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents  
 

There were no appeals against the refusal of inspection of documents. 
 

100 Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 

There were no exemptions to exclude the public. 
 

101 Late Items  
 

There were no late items submitted to the agenda for consideration. 
 

102 Declaration of Interests  
 

Councillor Driver declared a personal interest in Agenda item 8 – as a 
Member of  the Leeds City Council Joint Plans Panel and City Centre Plans 
Panel (Minute No.106 refers) 
 
Councillor Driver also declared a person interest in Agenda item 10 – as a 
Board Member of Belle Isle Tenant Management Organisation. (Minute No. 
108 refers) 
 
Councillor Lowe declared a personal interest in Agenda item 10 – Internal 
Audit Report – as a Board Member of West North West Homes. 
 

103 Apologies For Absence  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor J Elliot and Mr G 
Tollefson. 
 

104 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 

The minutes of the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee meeting held 
on 27th March 2012 were approved as a correct record. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on 4

th
 July 2012 

 

105 Chair's Remarks  
 

  
The Chair informed the Committee that this would be his last meeting as a 
Member of the Committee as he was not standing for re-election at the 
forthcoming elections in May. 
 
The Chair gave a detailed update of the latest position with regards to the 
future appointment of External Auditors. At a recent core city meeting there 
has been an expression of interest in creating a mutual independent audit 
appointment panel which would consider the appointment of External Auditors 
across the core cities.  
 
The Chair invited the Chief Officer (Audit and Risk) to comment on a recently 
received letter from the Audit Commission which will be circulated to Members 
of the Committee. In summary the letter seeks consultation on the 
appointment of External Auditors and whether KPMG should be re-appointed 
for a further five years.  
 
Concerns were raised about whether the Audit Commission would have 
capacity to monitor the contract over the longer term, particularly, in light of 
the recent government announcements. Members were informed at this point 
that the Audit Commission are likely to continue to exist in order to oversee 
any contracts let. Members also discussed the implication of external auditors 
remaining in position for a number of years and the impact this could have on 
the relationship with the Council. The Chief Officer (Audit & Risk) explained 
the arrangements for the rotation of lead partners within audit firms to mitigate 
any risk of this nature. Members also questioned whether indeed the Council 
had any choice in practice and what, if any, was the alternative to the 
reappointment of KPMG. Discussion turned to the arrangements to ensure a 
value added service from KPMG given the overall length of the contract. It 
was decided that the consultation response should reflect concerns over the 
Audit Commission’s arrangements to quality assure the contract. 
 
Members also discussed the likely reduction in the audit fee and the Chief 
Officer (Audit & Risk) explained that the Audit Commission will continue to set 
the fee scale for the Council and the expectation that the actual fee payable 
would be within this fee scale, depending on the risks associated with the 
audit. Members also discussed the scope of the audit and the arrangements 
whereby the National Audit Office would take over producing the Code of 
Audit Practice and therefore the definition of the scope. 
 
It was agreed that the Chief Officer (Audit & Risk) would respond to the Audit 
Commission’s consultation and take into account the views expressed by the 
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee. 
 
 
(Councillor W Hyde entered the meeting at 2:30pm during the discussion of 
this item)  
 

Page 2



 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on 4

th
 July 2012 

 

 
 
 

106 Assurances of the process by which planning decisions are taken by the 
Council  

 
 
The Head of Planning Services presented a report of the Chief Planning 
Officer. The report responded to the request of the Committee to set out the 
arrangements in respect of planning decisions taken by the Council in 
2011/12. The report provided assurances to the Committee as to the 
operation of the arrangements and processes that are in place, ensuring they 
are up to date, accountable, transparent, have integrity, and are effective and 
inclusive.  The report also outlined the arrangements that are in place to 
underpin the decision making process within the remit of the Chief Planning 
Officer: which are planning decisions taken by the Plans Panels and planning 
decisions taken by officers under delegated authority. 
 
Members discussed the report in detail. Consideration was given to 
monitoring the decisions made by officers in relation to planning and the best 
way of achieving assurance that decisions made were correct. 
 
it was considered that those Members not on the Plans Panels should receive 
more training with regards to planning so that they can better advise on 
queries received from constituents. 
 
RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to: 
 

(a) note the contents of the report; 
(b) receive a report on planning decisions on an annual basis; and 
(c) refer the matter of Member training to the Head of Scrutiny and 

Member Development for further consideration with the Chief Planning 
Officer. 

 
107 Annual Statement on Community Engagement  
 

The Chief Officer (Leeds Initiative and Partnerships) presented a report of the 
Assistant Chief Executive (Customer Access and Performance). The report 
provided assurance to the Committee on the Council’s ability to support 
residents’ involvement in decision making and the development of services. 
The report considered the effectiveness of governance controls currently in 
place for these arrangements as well as progress in 2011/12 and key 
improvements planned for 2012/13. 
 
Members considered the report and expressed the view that they felt that 
Members needed to have greater involvement in this process, with Executive 
Members, Area Committees, Scrutiny Boards and individual Ward Members 
having a key role to play, in ensuring appropriate engagement activity is 
undertaken and is taken into account in the decision making process  
 

Page 3



 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on 4

th
 July 2012 

 

Members also felt that following consultation of local people it was essential to 
act upon their views.  
 
RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to note the contents of the report. 
 

108 Internal Audit Report  
 

 The Head of Internal Audit presented a report of the Director of Resources. 
The report provided a summary of internal audit activity for the period to 
March 2012 and highlighted the incidence of any significant control failings or 
weaknesses. 
 
The Head of Audit took Members through the key issues in section 2 of the 
Internal Audit report March 2012 attached at Appendix 1 of the report. 
 
Members sought further clarification of audit findings relating to the 
procedures in ALMOs which ensure that the date of registration is consistently 
documented within the housing allocation process. Members felt that they 
would like this area exploring in greater detail in the next Internal Audit report;  
 
Members explored issues relating to potential cheque fraud and whether this 
was a major problem which needed more resources to look in to it. 
 
Members also asked questions of the Head of Internal Audit in relation to 
sampling techniques for audit testing and assurance levels given by the 
Internal Audit service.  
 
RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to: 
(a) note the work undertaken by Internal Audit during the period covered 

by the report; and 
(b) that the Head of Internal Audit further explore the date of registration 

issues raised and report back within the next scheduled Internal Audit 
report to the Committee. 

 
(Councillor Lowe left the meeting during the consideration of this item at 
3:35pm)  
 

109 Update on Changes to Accounting Practice impacting on the 2011/12 
Accounts.  

 
The Principal Finance Manager presented a report of the Director of 
Resources. The report outlined the major changes to legislation and 
accounting practice which will impact on the 2011/12 accounts.  
 
RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to note the impact of the new 
accounting and legislative requirements on the Council’s 2011/12 accounts. 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on 4

th
 July 2012 

 

110 Financial Procedure Rules  
 

The Principal Audit Manager presented a report of the Director of Resources. 
The report informed Members of the rationale behind the current update to the 
Financial Procedure Rules. 
 
RESOLVED – The Committee resolved to: 
 

(a) note the contents of the report; and 
(b) request a report in a years time to ensure the revised FPRs have 

achieved what they set out to do. 
 

111 Corporate Governance and Audit Committee  
 

The Governance Officer presented a report of the Director of Resources. The 
report presented the Committee’s Annual report to Members. 
 
The Committee explored whether the annual report might be received by 
Executive Board to further promote the work of the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED – The Committee Resolved to: 
 
(a) note the contents of the report; and 
(b) ask the Chief Officer Audit and Risk and the Head of Governance 

Services to bring forward a further refined work programme for 
consideration at the first meeting of the municipal year in July. 

 
112 Work Programme  
 

The Director of Resources submitted a report notifying Members of the work 
programme. 
 
The Committee reviewed its forthcoming work programme. 
 
RESOLVED  - The Committee resolved to note the work programme. 
 
At the close of business, the Chair expressed his thanks for the support of 
Members and Officers throughout the municipal year 2011/12.  
 
Members responded by thanking Cllr Driver for Chairing the Committee’s 
meetings over the last two municipal years and for all his hard work in guiding 
the Committee.  Members and Officers also wished Cllr Driver a happy 
retirement from public office.  
 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of the Director of Resources 

Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 

Date: 4th July 2012 

Subject: KPMG Interim Audit Report 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

KPMG have completed their interim work on the controls on the Council’s systems and 
procedures which underpin the Council’s financial statements. Overall they have 
concluded that they are effective.   

KPMG have however identified a number of minor control weaknesses in respect of some 
ICT and the Council’s payroll system which require strengthening. This may result in the 
need for some additional audit work when completing the audit of the 2011/12 accounts.   

Full reliance can and has been placed on the work of Internal Audit. 

An initial review of the Council’s approach to new accounting requirements for 2011/12 
has found no issues.      

In respect of the Value For Money (VFM)  conclusion, it is acknowledged that the Council 
has achieved its savings target for 2011/12. KPMG will be completing further work around 
the Medium Term Financial Plan and the 2012/13 budget before reaching their VFM 
conclusion in September. 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that Members note the positive assurances provide by KPMG  on the 
systems and controls which underpin the Council’s financial statements. 

 
Report author:  Doug Meeson 

Tel:  x74250 

Agenda Item 8

Page 7



 

 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 In line with the audit plan presented to this Committee in February, this report 
identifies the findings from KPMG’s interim audit work in relation to the 2011/12 
financial statements and the initial work undertaken to support their 2011/12 Value 
for Money conclusion. KPMG’s full Interim Report is attached as Appendix 1. 

2 Background information 

2.1 A significant proportion of the accounts audit is completed before KPMG receive the 
Council’s financial statements. This initial audit work is designed to gain assurances 
on the Council’s controls and procedures in order to minimise the audit coverage 
required at the final audit stage. The main procedures and controls assessed at this 
interim audit stage are as follows: 

§ review of the Authority’s accounts production process, including work to address 
prior year audit recommendations and the risk areas identified for this year; 

§ review of the Authority’s general control environment, including the IT, 
Organisational and key financial systems; 

§ review of the internal audit function to determine if they could place reliance 
upon their work. 

2.2 In addition to the interim work on the audit of the final accounts, KPMG have also 
undertaken the initial work on the 2011/12 Value for Money conclusion. 

2.3 This covering report highlights the main findings of this audit work with the detailed 
results shown in the attached KPMG report. 

3.0 Main issues 

3.1 The key findings of KPMG’s interim audit are as follows: 

§ The accounts process: There are no issues identified to date in respect of the 
progress towards identifying and valuing heritage assets.  In addition, officers 
have enlarged the sample of property valuations in order to further justify the 
Council’s componentisation policy. Both are subject to further testing as part of 
the in the main audit work in August and any findings will be reported back to 
members of this Committee in the External Auditors ISA 260 report in 
September. 

§ Organisational control environment: Overall control is effective and there are no 
issues or areas for improvement identified.  

§ IT controls: Overall the Council has effective IT controls and KPMG have 
identified only two low risk recommendations for 2011/12. In addition, one 
recommendation from 2010/11 was only partially complete in respect of access 
monitoring for the Council Tax, NNDR and Housing management systems. 
These issues and any management responses and timescales for 
implementation are highlighted in appendix 3 and 4 of the attached KPMG 
report. 

§ Financial systems: For 2011/12 KPMG have identified two control weaknesses, 
one in respect of the payroll system and the other in respect of ordering and 
payments (see appendix 1 of the attached KPMG report). In addition there is 
one outstanding issue from the 2010/11 interim audit in respect of the overtime 

Page 8



 

 

payment authorisation controls. Whilst it is recognised that there are some 
compensating controls in place, KPMG will follow up progress on the payroll 
related issues in order to conclude as to whether this will impact on KPMG’s 
approach to the year end testing of payroll as part of the final accounts audit. 

3.2 Full reliance can and has been placed on the work of Internal Audit and KPMG have 
confirmed that Internal Audit have complied with the Code of Practice for Internal 
Audit in Local Government. 

3.3 In respect of the Value for Money (VFM) conclusion, KPMG interim audit work has 
concentrated on the 2011/12 financial position. KPMG will be completing further 
work around the Medium Term Financial Plan and the 2012/13 budget before 
reaching it’s VFM conclusion in September. 

4.0 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 The audit plan does not raise any issues requiring consultation or engagement with 
the public, Ward members or Councillors.  

4.2      Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1   There are no issues regarding equality, diversity, cohesion and integration. 

4.3      Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 Under this Committee’s terms of reference members are required to consider the 
Council’s arrangements relating to external audit, including the receipt of external 
audit reports. This is to provide a basis for gaining the necessary assurance 
regarding governance prior to the approval of the Council’s accounts. 

4.4      Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 The report highlights the auditor’s work towards assessing whether the Council has 
proper arrangements for securing value for money.  

4.5      Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 The report does not require a key decision and is therefore not subject to call-in. 

4.6      Risk Management 

4.6.1 The attached report from KPMG contains responses from officers on the progress 
towards reducing the risks identified. 

5.0 Conclusions 

5.1 A summary of the main issues identified by KPMG’s Interim report are as follows: 

§§§§ The Council’s organisational controls are effective overall and there are no 
weaknesses that will have an impact on KPMG’s audit strategy. 

§§§§ Full reliance could be placed on the work of Internal Audit. 
§§§§ The process for completing the Council’s financial statements is adequate and 

there are no key issues identified to date. 
§§§§ The controls over the Council’s key financial systems are generally sound, 

although further audit work maybe required in respect of the payroll system. 

5.2 In respect of the VFM conclusion, the Authority has achieved its savings target for 
2011/12. KPMG will be completing further work around the Medium Term Financial 
Plan and the 2012/13 budget before reaching it’s VFM conclusion in September. 

 

Page 9



 

 

6.0   Recommendation 

6.1    It is recommended that Members note the positive assurances provide by KPMG  on 
the systems and controls which underpin the Council’s financial statements.    

7.0    Background documents1  

7.1 KPMG External Audit Plan 2011/12 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 10



I
t

i
A

d
it

R
t

In
te

ri
m

A
u

d
it

R
e
p

o
rt

2
0
1
1
/1

2

L
e
e
d

s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

Page 11



C
o

n
te

n
ts

P
a
g

e

R
e

p
o

rt
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
s

T
h

e
 c

o
n

ta
c
ts

 a
t 

K
P

M
G

 

in
 c

o
n

n
e
c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
is

 

re
p

o
rt

 a
re

:

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

2

H
e

a
d
lin

e
s

3

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

5

p

M
ik

e
 M

c
D

o
n

a
g

h

P
a
rt

n
e
r

K
P

M
G

 L
L
P

 (
U

K
)

T
e
l:

+
4
4

(0
)

2
0
7

6
9
4

5
5
4
6

V
F

M
c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
1
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ic

e
s

1
.

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

t
t

t
d

it
1

6

T
e
l:

+
 4

4
 (

0
) 

2
0
7
 6

9
4
 5

5
4
6

m
ic

h
a

e
l.
a

.m
c
d

o
n

a
g

h
@

k
p

m
g

.c
o

.u
k

S
te

v
e
 C

la
rk

D
ir
e
c
to

r

K
P

M
G

 L
L
P

 (
U

K
)

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
u

d
it

1
6

2
.

F
o

llo
w

-u
p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

(a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

)
1

8

3
.

K
e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 (

IT
)

2
0

T
e
l:

+
 4

4
 (

0
) 

1
1
3
 2

5
4
 2

9
1
0

s
te

p
h

e
n

.c
la

rk
@

k
p

m
g

.c
o
.u

k

H
e
a
th

e
r 

G
a
rr

e
tt

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

4
.

F
o

llo
w

-u
p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s

(I
T

)
2

1

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

o
le

 u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

W
e
 t

a
k
e
 n

o
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 t

o
 a

n
y
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 a

c
ti

n
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l 

c
a
p

a
c
it

ie
s
, 

o
r 

to
 t

h
ir

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
. 

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 a
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

t 
e
n

ti
tl

e
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it

e
d

 B
o

d
ie

s
. 

T
h

is
 

s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

o
rs

 b
e
g

in
 a

n
d

 e
n

d
 a

n
d

 w
h

a
t 

is
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
e
d

 b
o

d
y
. 

W
e
 d

ra
w

 y
o

u
r 

a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s

 a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 

th
A

d
it

C
i

i
’

b
it

t
d

it
i

i
k

g

K
P

M
G

 L
L
P

 (
U

K
)

T
e
l:

+
 4

4
 (

0
) 

1
6
1
 2

4
6
 4

2
9
4

h
e
a
th

e
r.

g
a
rr

e
tt

@
k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k

D
e
b

o
ra

h
 R

u
m

s
e

y
o

n
th

e
A

u
d

it
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 w
e
b

s
it

e
 a

t 
w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
.

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u

d
it

o
rs

 d
o

 n
o

t 
a
c
t 

a
s
 a

 s
u

b
s
ti

tu
te

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e
d

 b
o

d
y
’s

 o
w

n
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

p
u

tt
in

g
 i

n
 p

la
c
e
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

p
u

b
li

c
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
s
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 l

a
w

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

e
r 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

p
u

b
li

c
 m

o
n

e
y
 i

s
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r,
 a

n
d

 u
s
e
d

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

a
ll

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl

y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

ly
.

If
 y

o
u

 h
a
v
e
 a

n
y
 c

o
n

c
e
rn

s
 o

r 
a
re

 d
is

s
a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 w
it

h
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

K
P

M
G

’s
 w

o
rk

, 
in

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

in
s
ta

n
c
e
 y

o
u

 s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

M
ik

e
 M

c
D

o
n

a
g

h
, 
th

e
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
le

a
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

, 
w

h
o

 w
il

l 
tr

y
 t

o
 r

e
s

o
lv

e
 y

o
u

r 
c
o

m
p

la
in

t.
 I

f 
y
o

u
 a

re
 d

is
s
a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 w
it

h
 y

o
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e
 p

le
a
s
e
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

T
re

v
o

r 
R

e
e
s
 o

n
 0

1
6
1

2
4
6
 4

0
0
0
, 
o

r 
b

y
 e

m
a
il

 t
o

 

tr
e
v
o

r.
re

e
s
@

k
p

m
g

.c
o

.u
k

, 
w

h
o

 i
s

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

fo
r 

a
ll

 o
f 

K
P

M
G

’s
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

. 
A

ft
e

r 
th

is
, 

if
 y

o
u

 a
re

 s
ti

ll
 d

is
s

a
ti

s
fi

e
d

 w
it

h
 h

o
w

 y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 h
a
n

d
le

d
 y

o
u

 c
a
n

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

. 
P

u
t 

y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
in

 w
ri

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 U
n

it
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 A
u

d
it

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
W

e
s
tw

a
rd

H
o

u
s
e

L
im

e
K

il
n

C
lo

s
e

S
to

k
e

G
if

fo
rd

B
ri

s
to

l
B

S
3
4

8
S

R
o

r
b

y
e
m

a
il

to
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
@

a
u

d
it

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
g

o
v

u
k

T
h

e
ir

te
le

p
h

o
n

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

is
0
8
4
4

y

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

K
P

M
G

 L
L
P

 (
U

K
)

T
e
l:

+
4
4
 (

0
) 

1
1
3
 2

3
1
 3

0
6
9

d
e

b
o

ra
h
.r

u
m

s
e

y
@

k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k

1
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
,
W

e
s

tw
a
rd

H
o

u
s
e
,
L

im
e

K
il

n
C

lo
s
e

,
S

to
k
e

G
if

fo
rd

,
B

ri
s
to

l,
B

S
3
4

8
S

R
o

r
b

y
e

m
a

il
to

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
@

a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
.

T
h

e
ir

te
le

p
h

o
n

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

is
0
8
4
4

7
9
8
 3

1
3
1
, 

te
x
tp

h
o

n
e
 (

m
in

ic
o

m
) 

0
2
0
 7

6
3
0
 0

4
2
1
.

Page 12



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

n
e

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

S
c
o

p
e
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

:

o
u
r 

in
te

ri
m

 a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 a
t 

L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

(t
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

) 
in

 

re
la

ti
o
n

to
th

e
2
0
1
1
/1

2
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

;
a
n
d

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n

O
u
r 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 o

u
r 

ri
s
k
-b

a
s
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 

V
F

M
 w

o
rk

, 
w

h
ic

h
 f

o
llo

w
s
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 s

o
m

e
 e

a
rl
y
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
u
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 V

F
M

 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

t 
s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e
s
 

th
e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 d
a
te

 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

; 
a
n
d

o
u
r 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
u
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 (

V
F

M
) 

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

u
p
 t
o
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
.

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

p
y

p
p

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
:

a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
V

F
M

 r
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

ri
s
k
s
 f
o
r 

o
u
r 

V
F

M
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
;

c
o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
a
n
y
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

w
o
rk

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
th

e
 

A
u
d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
o
th

e
r

in
s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

s
a
n
d

re
v
ie

w
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
in

to
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
.

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

O
u
r 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
, 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 y

o
u
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

2
0
1
2
, 

s
e
t 
o
u
t 

th
e
 f

o
u
r 

s
ta

g
e
s
 o

f 
o
u
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
, 

o
th

e
r 

in
s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
s
e
 r

is
k
 a

re
a
s
; 

a
n
d

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 w

h
a
t 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
ri
s
k
-b

a
s
e
d
 w

o
rk

 w
e
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
.

D
u
ri
n
g
 M

a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 w

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

u
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

. 
T

h
is

 c
o
v
e
re

d
 o

u
r:

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
d
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 t

w
o
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
d
lin

e
 m

e
s
s
a
g
e
s
.

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 t

h
re

e
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 

o
u
r 

k
e
y
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 o
u
r 

in
te

ri
m

 a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

S
u

b
s
ta

n
ti

v
e
 

P
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
P

la
n

n
in

g

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 (

IT
) 

s
y
s
te

m
s
;

te
s
ti
n
g
 o

f 
c
e
rt

a
in

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 k

e
y
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 h

e
lp

 o
f 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
; 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

o
f
th

e
In

te
rn

a
l
A

u
d
it

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
;

a
n
d

y
g

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 f

o
u
r 

o
u
tl
in

e
s
 o

u
r 

k
e
y
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 o
u
r 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 t

h
e
 V

F
M

 

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
.

M
a
tt
e
rs

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 o
u
r 

w
o
rk

 a
re

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n

d
ic

e
s
 o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

th
re

e
w

it
h

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s

m
a
d
e

w
h
e
re

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

W
e

h
a
v
e

a
ls

o
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
; 

a
n
d

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 p

ri
o
r 

y
e
a
r 

a
u
d
it
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 r
is

k
 a

re
a
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
is

 y
e
a

r.

th
re

e
 w

it
h
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s
 t

w
o
 a

n
d
 f

o
u
r.

A
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e
m

e
n

ts

2
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

W
e
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 t
a
k
e
 t

h
is

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 t
h
a
n
k
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 

fo
r 

th
e
ir
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 h

e
lp

 a
n
d
 c

o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o

u
t 

o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

.

Page 13



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
w

o

H
e
a
d

li
n

e
s

T
h

is
 t

a
b

le
 s

u
m

m
a
ri

s
e
s
 t

h
e
 

h
e
a
d

li
n

e
 m

e
s
s
a
g

e
s
. 

T
h

e
 

re
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 

th
is

 r
e

p
o

rt

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
a
n

d
 I
T

 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t

Y
o
u
r

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l
a
n
d

IT
c
o
n
tr

o
l
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

a
re

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e

o
v
e
ra

ll.

W
e

h
a
v
e

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

s
o
m

e
m

in
o

r
c
o
n
tr

o
l
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s

in
re

la
ti
o

n
to

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l
a
c
c
e
s
s

to
s
e
rv

e
r

ro
o
m

s
a

n
d

th
e

re
te

n
ti
o
n

o
f

p

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

il
s
 o

n
 

e
a
c
h

 a
re

a
.

W
e

h
a
v
e

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

s
o
m

e
m

in
o

r
c
o
n
tr

o
l
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s

in
re

la
ti
o

n
to

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l
a
c
c
e
s
s

to
s
e
rv

e
r

ro
o
m

s
a

n
d

th
e

re
te

n
ti
o
n

o
f

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

fo
r

n
e
w

s
ta

rt
e
rs

w
h
o

w
e
re

g
ra

n
te

d
a
c
c
e

s
s

to
F

M
S

(t
h
e

g
e
n
e
ra

l
le

d
g
e
r)

.

O
f

th
e

tw
o

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

a
ti
o
n
s

m
a
d
e

b
y

u
s

in
2
0
1
0
/1

1
in

re
la

ti
o

n
to

th
e

IT
c
o
n
tr

o
l

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,

o
n
e

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

fu
lly

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
a

n
d

o
n

e
re

m
a
in

s
o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
in

re
la

ti
o
n

to
th

e
re

v
ie

w
o
f

a
c
c
e
s
s

ri
g
h
ts

to
th

e
C

o
u
n
c
il

T
a
x

a
n
d

N
N

D
R

s
y
s
te

m
a
n
d

th
e

h
o
u
s
in

g
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

s
y
s
te

m
.

T
h
e
s
e

a
re

d
e
ta

ile
d

fu
rt

h
e
r

in
A

p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

th
re

e
a
n
d

fo
u

r.
p
p

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
v
e
r 

k
e
y
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

g
e
n

e
ra

lly
s
o
u
n
d

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

o
v
e
r

it
s

k
e

y
fi
n
a
n

c
ia

l
s
y
s
te

m
s
,

h
o

w
e
v
e
r

s
o

m
e

c
o
n
tr

o
l

w
e

a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s

w
e

re

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

b
y

In
te

rn
a
l
A

u
d
it

w
it
h

re
g
a
rd

s
to

:

c
h
a
n
g
e
s

m
a
d
e

to
p
a
y
ro

ll
in

re
s
p
e
c
t

o
f
le

a
v
e
rs

a
n
d

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

to
s
ta

n
d
in

g
d
a
ta

;
a
n
d

o
rd

e
ri
n
g

a
n
d

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

.

In
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

o
n
e

w
e

h
a
v
e

e
x
p
la

in
e
d

th
e

im
p
a
c
t

o
f
In

te
rn

a
l
A

u
d
it
’s

fi
n
d
in

g
s

fo
r

o
u
r

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

a
u
d
it

w
o
rk

.

W
e

h
a
v
e

y
e
t

to
fi
n
a
lis

e
a

ll
o
f

o
u
r

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

w
o

rk
re

g
a
rd

in
g

fi
x
e

d
a
s
s
e
ts

a
n
d

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l
re

p
o
rt

in
g

(d
u
e

to
a

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g

o
n
ly

a
t

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
)

a
n
d

b
u
d
g
e
t

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

,
w

h
ic

h
In

te
rn

a
l
A

u
d
it

h
a
d

n
o
t

y
e
t

te
s
te

d
.

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u

d
it

W
e

w
e
re

a
b

le
to

p
la

c
e

fu
ll

re
lia

n
c
e

o
n

In
te

rn
a
l

A
u
d
it
’s

w
o
rk

o
n

th
e

k
e
y

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l
s
y
s
te

m
s

a
n
d

a
re

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

th
a
t

th
e

y

a
re

c
o
m

p
lia

n
t

w
it
h

th
e

C
o
d
e

o
f

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

fo
r

In
te

rn
a
l
A

u
d
it

in
L
o
c
a
l
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

A
u

d
it

a
re

c
o
m

p
lia

n
t

w
it
h

th
e

C
o
d
e

o
f

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

fo
r

In
te

rn
a
l
A

u
d
it

in
L
o
c
a
l
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

3
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 14



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
w

o

H
e
a
d

li
n

e
s
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 

a
n

d
 s

p
e
c
if

ic
 r

is
k
 

a
re

a
s

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

m
e
t
k
e
y

c
lo

s
e
d
o

w
n

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
.

W
e

n
o
te

d
th

e
fo

llo
w

in
g

in
re

s
p
e
c
t

o
f

s
p
e
c
if
ic

ri
s
k

a
re

a
s
:

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l
s
ta

n
d

in
g

(s
a

v
in

g
s

p
la

n
s
)

–
T

h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
it
s

£
9
0

m
ill

io
n

s
a
v
in

g
s

in
2
0
1

1
/1

2
a

n
d

o
v
e
ra

ll
is

£
1
.5

m
ill

io
n

u
n

d
e

r
s
p
e
n
t

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
to

th
e

o
ri

g
in

a
l
b
u
d
g

e
t

a
t

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d

,
a

ft
e
r

ta
k
in

g
a
c
c
o
u
n
t

o
f

£
3
.6

m
ill

io
n

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

n
e
t

p
p

g
g

y
,

g
g

s
a
v
in

g
s
.

T
h
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

fo
r

E
a
rl

y
L
e
a
v
e
rs

w
a
s

a
ls

o
n
o
t

fu
lly

u
ti
lis

e
d

in
th

e
y
e
a
r

d
u

e
to

c
o
s
ts

b
e
in

g
m

e
t

fr
o
m

u
n
p
la

n
n
e
d
,

in
-y

e
a
r

b
u
d
g
e
t

s
a
v
in

g
s
.

C
o

m
p

o
n

e
n

t
a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
–

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
s

to
a
c
c
o
u
n
t

fo
r

H
R

A
a
s
s
e
ts

o
n

a
n
o
n
-c

o
m

p
o
n
e

n
t

b
a
s
is

.
T

h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

a
la

rg
e
r

s
a
m

p
le

o
f

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
v
a

lu
a
ti
o
n
s

to
s
u
p
p

o
rt

th
is

p
o
lic

y
in

2
0
1
1
/1

2
a
n
d

th
is

e
x
e
rc

is
e

is
s
ti
ll

o
n
g
o
in

g
.

T
h
e

re
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

b
e

re
v
ie

w
e
d

a
t

y
e
a

r-
e
n
d

to
e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t
th

e
y

s
u
p
p
o
rt

th
e

p
o
lic

y
in

p
la

c
e
.

C
d

h
W

i
d

th
A

th
it

’
f

id
ti
f

i
d

l
i

t
h

it
t

t
i

C
o

d
e

c
h

a
n

g
e
s

–
W

e
re

v
ie

w
e

d
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
p
ro

c
e
s
s

fo
r

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g

a
n
d

v
a
lu

in
g

to
h
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e
ts

to
g
a
in

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

th
a
t

th
is

w
a
s

re
a
s
o
n
a
b

le
.

H
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e
ts

a
re

lik
e
ly

to
b

e
m

a
te

ri
a
l

a
n
d

th
e

re
fo

re
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

w
ill

b
e

re
q
u
ir
e
d

to
m

a
k
e

a
p
ri
o
r

p
e
ri
o
d

re
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t.

V
F

M
 w

o
rk

O
u
r

w
o
rk

o
v
e
r

th
e

v
a
lu

e
fo

r
m

o
n
e

y
c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
is

s
ti
ll

la
rg

e
ly

o
n
g
o

in
g
.

W
e

h
a
v
e

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
th

e
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
p
o

s
it
io

n
o
f

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

o
v
e
r

th
e

la
s
t

fe
w

m
o
n
th

s
in

re
s
p
e
c
t

o
f

fi
n
a
n

c
ia

l
re

s
ili

e
n
c
e
.

T
h
e

c
u
rr

e
n
t

y
e
a
r’
s

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
p
o
s
it
io

n
is

s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d

a
b
o
v
e
.

O
v
e
r

th
e

c
o

m
in

g
m

o
n
th

s
w

e
w

ill
c
o
m

p
le

te
fu

rt
h
e
r

w
o
rk

a
ro

u
n
d

th
e

M
e
d
iu

m
T

e
rm

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l
P

la
n

s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d

a
b
o
v
e
.

O
v
e
r

th
e

c
o

m
in

g
m

o
n
th

s
w

e
w

ill
c
o
m

p
le

te
fu

rt
h
e
r

w
o
rk

a
ro

u
n
d

th
e

M
e
d
iu

m
T

e
rm

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l
P

la
n

a
n
d

th
e

2
0
1
2
/1

3
b
u
d
g
e
t.

F
o
llo

w
in

g
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s

w
it
h

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

w
e

h
a
v
e

a
g
re

e
d

to
fa

c
ili

ta
te

a
w

o
rk

s
h
o

p
fo

r
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

re
g
a
rd

in
g

th
e

tr
a
n
s
fe

r
o
f

P
u
b
lic

H
e
a
lt
h

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

fr
o
m

th
e

P
ri
m

a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru

s
t

to
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

.
T

h
is

w
ill

fo
c
u
s

o
n

a
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
o
f

th
e

k
e
y

ri
s
k
s

a
n
d

h
o
w

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

p
la

n
s

to
m

it
ig

a
te

th
o
s
e

ri
s
k
s
.

4
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 15



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 –
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

C
o
n
tr

o
ls

 o
p
e
ra

te
d
 a

t 
a
n
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
o
ft
e
n
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
t 
a
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
a
n
d
 i
f 
th

e
re

 w
e
re

 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 t

h
is

 

ld
h

i
li

i
f

d
i

Y
o

u
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
is

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 

o
v
e

ra
ll

. 

A
s
p

e
c
t

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t’
s
 p

h
il

o
s
o

p
h

y
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 s

ty
le

 

w
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
. 

In
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 w
e
 u

s
e
d
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 t

h
e
 U

s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

to
 i
n
fo

rm
 o

u
r 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
. 

D
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 

s
c
o
p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 V

F
M

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 m

o
re

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
u
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
p
in

io
n
.

W
b
t

i
d

t
d
i

f
th

A
th

it
’

ll
t

l

C
u

lt
u

re
 o

f 
h

o
n

e
s
ty

 a
n

d
 e

th
ic

a
l 

b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

O
v
e
rs

ig
h

t 
b

y
 t

h
o

s
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d

 w
it

h
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

R
e
la

te
d

 p
a
rt

ie
s
 

R
is

k
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t
p

ro
c
e
s
s

W
e
 o

b
ta

in
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 i
f 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

K
e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s

R
is

k
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t
p

ro
c
e
s
s

In
te

rn
a
l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

W
e
 f
o
u
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

y
o
u
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

is
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

o
v
e
ra

ll.
  

W
e
 d

id
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

r 
a
re

a
s
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
  

K
e
y
:

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
g
a
p
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 

D
e

fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

.

G
e

n
e

ra
lly

 s
o

u
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.

5
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 16



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 –
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

IT
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 r
e
lie

s
 o

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 (

IT
) 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 b
o
th

 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 s

a
ti
s
fy

 

l
h

l
h

IT
d

b
i

Y
o

u
r 

IT
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 

is
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
.

W
t

d
th

f

A
s
p

e
c
t

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

A
c
c
e

s
s

to
s
y
s
te

m
s

a
n

d
d

a
ta

o
u
rs

e
lv

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 c

a
n
 r

e
ly

 o
n
 t

h
e
 I

T
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
, 

w
e
 o

b
ta

in
 

a
n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
 i
f 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

T
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 w
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
o
s
e
 o

v
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 

d
a
ta

, 
s
y
s
te

m
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
, 

s
y
s
te

m
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
u
te

r 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

W
e
 n

o
te

d
th

re
e
 a

re
a
s
 f

o
r

fu
rt

h
e
r 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t:

-
A

c
a
d

e
m

y
 a

n
d

 O
rc

h
a
rd

 

u
s
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
;

A
c
c
e

s
s

to
s
y
s
te

m
s

a
n

d
d

a
ta

S
y
s
te

m
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 a

n
d

 m
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
n

e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

s

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
, 
in

c
l.
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 

b
a
c
k
u

p
a
n

d
e
n

d
u

s
e
r

c
o

m
p

u
ti

n
g

K
e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s

W
e
 f
o
u
n
d
 y

o
u
r 

IT
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

is
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
b
u
t 

w
e
 n

o
te

d
 

th
re

e
 a

re
a
s
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
  

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

a
is

e
d
 t

w
o
 l
o
w

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 F

M
S

 

-
F

M
S

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

 

s
ta

rt
e
rs

; 
a
n

d

-
P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

e
r 

ro
o

m
s
.

K
e
y
:

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
g
a
p
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.

D
e

fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

.

G
e

n
e

ra
lly

 s
o

u
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.

b
a
c
k
u

p
a
n

d
e
n

d
-u

s
e
r

c
o

m
p

u
ti

n
g

p
y

a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

n
e
w

 s
ta

rt
e
rs

 a
n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

e
r 

ro
o
m

s
. 

 I
n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
 o

n
e
 m

e
d
iu

m
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y
 

a
n
d
 O

rc
h
a
rd

 u
s
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

p
ri
o
r 

y
e
a
r.

  
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t

h
is

 a
s
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 u

s
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

re
ta

in
e
d
 b

y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

.

A
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
th

e
s
e

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s

s
h
o
u
ld

h
e
lp

to
s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n

A
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
s
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 h
e
lp

 t
o
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 k

e
y
 

IT
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
. 

 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 t
h
re

e
.

6
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 17



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 –
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
v
e
r 

k
e
y
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

W
e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 y

o
u
r 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
rs

 t
o
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
u
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 k

e
y
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

to
 o

u
r 

fi
l

d
i

W
fi

d
d
i

b
l

i

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 y

e
t 

to
 f

in
a
lis

e
 o

u
r 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 w
o
rk

 o
v
e
r 

fi
x
e
d
 a

s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 a

s
 m

a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 o
n
ly

 o
p
e
ra

te
 a

t 
y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
. 

 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 i
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

in
b
e
tw

e
e
n

n
o
w

a
n
d

o
u
r

fi
n
a
l
v
is

it
.

W
e

w
ill

s
e
e
k

to
p
la

c
e

re
lia

n
c
e

o
n

T
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 o

v
e
r 

a
ll

 o
f 

th
e
 

k
e
y
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 

g
e
n

e
ra

ll
y
 s

o
u

n
d

.
fi
n
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
u
d
it
. 

W
e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 o
u
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 b

y
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 

w
a
lk

th
ro

u
g
h
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
s
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
. 

W
e
 t
h
e
n
 t

e
s
t 
s
e
le

c
te

d
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 t
h
a
t 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
s
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
. 

T
h
e
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
n
fo

rm
s
 t

h
e
 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e
 t

e
s
ti
n
g
 w

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 d

u
ri
n
g
 o

u
r 

fi
n
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 v
is

it
. 

O
t

f
k

t
ill

t
l

b
i

li
it
h

th

in
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 n

o
w

 a
n
d
 o

u
r 

fi
n
a
l 
v
is

it
. 

 W
e
 w

ill
 s

e
e
k
 t

o
 p

la
c
e
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 

th
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
. 

 

g
y

H
o

w
e
v
e
r,

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
o

m
e
 

w
e
a
k
n

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n

 r
e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

P
a

y
ro

ll
. 

W
e

w
il
l
n

e
e
d

to
c
o

m
p

le
te

S
y
s
te

m
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t
O

u
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 k

e
y
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 b

e
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
rs

’ 
o
p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t

h
a
t 
s
y
s
te

m
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 w

e
 a

re
 

s
o
le

ly
 i
n
te

re
s
te

d
 i
n
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 r

is
k
s
 a

re
 m

it
ig

a
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

, 
i.
e
. 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 

m
a
te

ri
a
lly

 r
e
lia

b
le

 f
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

W
e

w
il

l
n

e
e
d

to
c
o

m
p

le
te

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti

v
e
 w

o
rk

 

in
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 a

t 
y
e
a
r-

e
n

d
. 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 r

e
n

ts
 i

n
c
o

m
e

C
o

u
n

c
il

 t
a
x
 i

n
c
o

m
e

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 i

n
c
o

m
e

K
e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s

T
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 o
v
e
r 

a
ll 

o
f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
 a

re
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 s

o
u
n
d
 

b
u
t 
fr

o
m

 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
’s

 w
o
rk

 w
e
 n

o
te

d
 s

o
m

e
 m

in
o
r 

w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
in

 a
re

a
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
:

P
a
y
ro

ll
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s

fo
r

le
a
v
e
rs

a
n
d

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

to
s
ta

n
d
in

g
p
a
y
ro

ll

S
u

n
d

ry
 i
n

c
o

m
e

P
a
y
ro

ll
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
o

n
-p

a
y
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

B
e
n

e
fi

ts
e
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

P
a
y
ro

ll 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 f

o
r 

le
a
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

ta
n
d
in

g
 p

a
y
ro

ll 

d
a
ta

. 
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
 A

u
d
it
  

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
  

T
h
o
s
e
 w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

p
a
y
ro

ll 
a
re

 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 m
a
te

ri
a
l 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

f
I

t
l
A

d
it
’

d
ti

i
th

i
t

id
ti
f

h
th

B
e
n

e
fi

ts
e
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

C
a
s
h

T
re

a
s
u

ry
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

K
e
y
:

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t
g
a
p
s

in
th

e
c
o
n
tr

o
l
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t

o
f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
’s

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

o
r 

n
o
t 
w

e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 a

m
e
n
d
 o

u
r 

a
u
d
it
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 

 F
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 

p
le

a
s
e
 s

e
e
 p

a
g

e
 1

6
. 

 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 i
n
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 o
n
e
. 

 G
e
n
e
ra

lly
, 

a
n
y
 w

e
a
k
n

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e
 t

e
s
ti
n
g
 b

e
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 o

u
r 

fi
n
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 o

f 

K
e
y
:

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
g
a
p
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.

D
e

fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

.

G
e

n
e

ra
lly

 s
o

u
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.

7
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

th
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

Page 18



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 –
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

W
e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 y

o
u
r 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
rs

 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 

fo
r 

k
e
y
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
e
k
 t

o
 r

e
ly

 o
n
 a

n
y
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

w
o
rk

 t
h
e
y
 

h
l

d
i

i
i

d
li

i
f

k
O

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 c

o
m

p
li
e
s
 w

it
h

 

th
e

C
o

d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti

c
e
 f

o
r 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 i
n

 L
o

c
a
l 

A
s
p

e
c
t

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

o
 m

in
im

is
e
 u

n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 d
u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 
O

u
r 

a
u
d
it
 f

e
e
 i
s
 s

e
t 
o
n
 t

h
e
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 c

a
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

u
ll 

re
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 

th
e
ir
 w

o
rk

. 

W
h
e
re

 w
e
 i
n
te

n
d
 t

o
 r

e
ly

 o
n
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
’s

 w
o
rk

 i
n

 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 k

e
y
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
, 

a
u
d
it
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 u

s
 t

o
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

o
 

G
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

t.
 

S
c
o

p
e
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u

d
it

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e

E
th

ic
s
 f

o
r 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

o
rs

A
u

d
it

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
p

e
v
a
lu

a
te

 a
n
d
 t

e
s
t 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 w

o
rk

. 

W
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
 A

u
d
it
’s

 w
o
rk

 o
n
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 

re
-p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 a

 s
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

te
s
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
m

. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 h

e
ld

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 
w

e
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

a
n
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

s
 t

h
e
y
 a

ri
s
e
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

w
h
e
re

 

A
u

d
it

C
o

m
m

it
te

e

R
e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 o

th
e
r 

a
u

d
it

o
rs

 

a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 b

o
d

ie
s

S
ta

ff
in

g
, 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

A
d

it
t

t
d

l
i

re
le

v
a
n
t 

th
e
y
 c

a
n
 b

e
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 p

la
n
n
in

g
.

K
e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
’s

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 a

re
 

fu
lly

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 f

o
r 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 i
n
 L

o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.
  

A
u

d
it

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

U
n

d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

A
u

d
it

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

D
u

e
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
c
a
re

T
h
is

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 s

e
lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
, 
o
u
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 f
ile

s
 a

n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

, 
o
u
r 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 

fr
o
m

 l
ia

is
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 a

ll 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
 w

is
h
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
ly

 

t
d

t
d

d
d

i
b
l

t
l

f
ll

li

R
e
p

o
rt

in
g

K
e
y
:

N
o

n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
.

u
p
o
n
 t

o
 a

 g
o
o
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 a
n
d
 w

e
 a

re
 a

g
a
in

 a
b
le

 t
o
 p

la
c
e
 f

u
ll 

re
lia

n
c
e
 

o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 w

o
rk

. 
  

A
re

a
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

F
u

ll 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
.

8
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 19



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 –
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

c
e
s
s

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

W
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

u
r 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 A
u
d
it
 P

ro
to

c
o
l 
to

 t
h
e
 P

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
t 

in
 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
G

ro
u
p
 o

n
 1

 M
a
y
 2

0
1
2
.

K
e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s

W
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
y
o
u
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

. 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 o
v
e
ra

ll
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i

s
 

T
h
is

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 a
n
d
 t

im
e
ta

b
le

. 
It
 

a
ls

o
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 w

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

. 

W
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
G

ro
u
p
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
m

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 c

lo
s
e
d
o

w
n
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 

ti

T
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 s

te
p
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
 t

w
o
 m

e
d
iu

m
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 r

a
is

e
d
 i
n
 o

u
r 

IS
A

 2
6
0
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

T
h
e
 t
a
b
le

 b
e
lo

w
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

o
u
r 

p
ri
o
r 

y
e
a
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
.

a
d

e
q

u
a
te

. 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 t

a
k
e
n

 

s
te

p
s
 t

o
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 i
n

 o
u

r 
IS

A
p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
. 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
o
u
r 

in
te

ri
m

 w
o
rk

 w
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 r
e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

IS
A

 2
6
0
 R

e
p
o
rt

 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
.

2
6
0
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 

to
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

Is
s
u

e
P

ro
g

re
s
s

Is
s
u

e
P

ro
g

re
s
s

C
o

m
p

o
n

e
n

t
A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g

A
ft
e
r

re
v
ie

w
o
f

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
w

o
rk

o
n

c
o

m
p
o
n
e

n
t

a
c
c
o

u
n
ti
n

g
d
u
ri

n
g

2
0
1
0
/1

1
,

w
e

a
s
k
e
d

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

to
c
o
n
s
id

e
r

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g
p
o

in
ts

:

•
W

h
e
re

th
e

le
v
e
l

o
f

c
a
p
it
a
l

e
x
p
e
n

d
it
u
re

in
a

y
e
a
r

is
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

a
n
d

l
t

t
i

d
i

id
l

t
h

f
th

th
A

th
it

W
e

id
e
n
ti
fi
e

d
th

is
a
s

a
s
p
e
c
if
ic

ri
s
k

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

o
u
r

p
la

n
n
in

g
fo

r
th

e

2
0
1
1
/1

2
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

a
u
d
it
.

W
e

h
a
v
e

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
o
u
r

fi
n
d
in

g
s

in
re

la
ti
o
n

to
o
u
r

w
o

rk
o
n

c
o
m

p
o

n
e

n
t

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

in
S

e
c
ti
o
n

fo
u
r

o
f

th
is

re
p
o
rt

re
la

te
s

to
a

n
in

d
iv

id
u
a

l
c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t,

s
u
c
h

a
s

a
ro

o
f,

th
e
n

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri

ty

s
h
o
u
ld

c
o
n
s
id

e
r

w
h

e
th

e
r

th
e

e
x
is

ti
n
g

p
o
lic

y
is

s
ti
ll

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

.
T

h
e

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

is
to

s
e

p
a
ra

te
ly

a
c
c
o
u
n
t

fo
r

th
e

s
p
e
n
d

a
s

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ts

;
a
n
d

•
T

h
e

im
p
e
n
d
in

g
c
h
a
n
g
e
s

to
th

e
H

R
A

.
T

h
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

p
a
p
e
r

is
s
u
e

d

b
y

C
IP

F
A

in
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

2
0
1
1

o
u
tl
in

e
d

th
e

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

a
b
o
lit

io
n

o
f

th
e

fo
u
r

o
f

th
is

re
p
o
rt

.

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

u
b
s
id

y
a
n

d
th

e
M

R
A

.
T

h
is

w
ill

in
c
re

a
s
e

th
e

im
p
o

rt
a
n
c
e

o
f

a
n

a
c
c
u
ra

te
d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o

n
c
h
a
rg

e
in

th
e

H
R

A
to

e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

s
u
it
a

b
le

p
ro

v
is

io
n
s

a
re

in
p
la

c
e

to
fu

n
d

m
a
jo

r
re

p
a
ir

s
to

h
o
u
s
in

g
s
to

c
k
.

F
o
r

e
x
a
m

p
le

,
if

th
e

to
ta

l
re

p
la

c
e

m
e
n
t

c
o
s
t

fo
r

a
n

a
s
s
e
t

o
v
e
r

th
e

3
0

y
e
a
r

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

p
la

n
is

£
3
3
,0

0
0

th
e
n

fo
r

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

p
la

n
n

in
g

p
u
rp

o
s
e

s
,

a
n

a
n
n
u
a
l
d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n

c
h
a
rg

e
o
f

£
1
,1

0
0

w
o
u
ld

b
e

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
.

9
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 20



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 –
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 r

is
k
 a

re
a
s

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

In
 o

u
r 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
, 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 y

o
u
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

, 
w

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
s
 a

ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 

O
d
it

t
t

d
l

i
fl

ib
l

i
k

d
i

h

Y
o
u
 h

a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
ly

 a
n
d
 m

a
d
e
 g

o
o
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
m

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
s
e
 s

ti
ll 

p
re

s
e
n
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 

th
a
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
 c

a
re

fu
l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 f

o
c
u

s
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
is

it
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 o

u
r 

fi
n
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
u
d
it
..
  

T
h
e

ta
b
le

b
e
lo

w
p
ro

v
id

e
s

a
s
u
m

m
a
ry

o
f
th

e
w

o
rk

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a

s

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 

ta
k
in

g
 s

te
p

s
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e
 

k
e
y
 r

is
k
 a

re
a
s
 w

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
O

u
r 

a
u
d
it
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
 r

e
m

a
in

 f
le

x
ib

le
 a

s
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r.

 T
o
 d

a
te

 t
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 n

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
s
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 t

o
 y

o
u
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
s
e
 r

is
k
s
 w

it
h

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
G

ro
u
p
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

re
g
u
la

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

w
e
 s

o
u
g
h
t 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

w
o
rk

in
g
s
 

a
n
d
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
 t

h
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n

g
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
o
u
r 

T
h
e
 t
a
b
le

 b
e
lo

w
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 s
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 t
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

o
 d

a
te

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
s
e
 r

is
k
s
.

y

a
n

d
 h

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 g

o
o

d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n

 a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 

th
e

m
.

H
o

w
e
v
e
r,

 t
h

e
s
e
 s

ti
ll
 p

re
s
e
n

t 
g

g
p

in
te

ri
m

 w
o
rk

. 

K
e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s

s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
c
h

a
ll
e
n

g
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
 c

a
re

fu
l 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 f

o
c
u

s
. 

W
e
 w

il
l 
re

v
is

it
 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 o
u

r 
fi

n
a
l 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
a
u

d
it

K
e
y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

Is
s
u

e
P

ro
g

re
s
s

A
t

th
e

e
n
d

o
f

p
e
ri
o
d

n
in

e
,

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

w
e

re
fo

re
c
a
s
ti
n
g

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

u
n
d
e
r

s
p
e
n
t

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
to

it
s

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
a
u

d
it

.
A

t
th

e
e
n
d

o
f

p
e
ri
o
d

n
in

e
,

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

w
e

re
fo

re
c
a
s
ti
n
g

a
n

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
o
f

£
0
.5

m
ill

io
n

o
n

b
u

d
g
e
t,

a
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

fr
o
m

th
e

£
7
.2

m
ill

io
n

o
v
e
rs

p
e

n
d

p
re

d
ic

te
d

a
t

th
e

e
n

d
o
f

th
e

s
e
c
o
n

d
q

u
a
rt

e
r.

T
h
is

is
p
ri

m
a
ri
ly

d
u
e

to

o
v
e
r

£
8

m
ill

io
n

o
f

u
n
b
u
d
g

e
te

d
fu

n
d
in

g
fr

o
m

th
e

N
H

S
to

s
u
p
p
o
rt

th
e

w
o
rk

in
A

d
u
lt

a
n
d

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

s
o
c
ia

l
c
a
re

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

w
h

ic
h

h
a
s

h
e
lp

e
d

to
o
ff
s
e
t

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
p
re

s
s
u
re

s

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

u
n
d
e
r

s
p
e
n
t

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
to

it
s

o
ri
g
in

a
l
b
u
d
g
e
t

b
y

£
1
.5

m
ill

io
n

in
2
0
1
1
/1

2
.

D
e
s
p
it
e

e
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
in

g
c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
d

p
re

s
s
u
re

s
,

b
o
th

A
d
u
lt

S
o
c
ia

l
C

a
re

’s
a

n
d

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
’
o
u
t-

tu
rn

p
o
s
it
io

n
w

a
s

u
n
d
e
r

b
u
d

g
e
t

a
t

y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
.

T
h
is

is

la
rg

e
ly

d
u

e
to

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
s
e

c
u
ri
n
g

a
n

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
£
6

m
ill

io
n

fu
n
d
in

g
fr

o
m

th
e

N
H

S
to

s
u
p
p
o
rt

th
e

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

n
d

in
g

 –

s
a
v
in

g
s

in
th

e
s
e

a
re

a
s
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
s

to
e
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e

d
e
c
lin

in
g

in
c
o

m
e

in
a
re

a
s

s
u

c
h

a
s

c
a
r

p
a
rk

in
g
,

p
la

n
n
in

g

fe
e
s

a
n
d

s
e
c
ti
o
n

2
7
8

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

,
h
o

w
e

v
e
r

th
is

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

o
ff
s
e
t

to
s
o
m

e
e
x
te

n
t

b
y

s
a
v
in

g
s

o
f

£
3
.3

m
ill

io
n

o
n

b
u
d
g
e
te

d
fi
n
a
n
c
e

c
o
s
ts

.

T
h
e

2
0
1
1
/1

2
b
u
d
g

e
t

in
c
lu

d
e
s

a
s
a
v
in

g
s

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

m
ill

io
n

fu
n
d
in

g
fr

o
m

th
e

N
H

S
to

s
u
p
p
o
rt

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

in
th

e
s
e

a
re

a
s
.

B
o
th

C
it
y

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

N
e
ig

h
b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

d
id

n
o
t

a
c
h
ie

v
e

b
u

d
g
e
t

a
t

y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
.

T
h
is

is
p
a
rt

ly
d
u
e

to
d
e
c
lin

in
g

in
c
o
m

e
in

th
e
s
e

a
re

a
s
.

O
v
e
ra

ll,
th

e
d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
w

e
re

£
2
.1

m
ill

io
n

o
v
e
r

g

p
la

n
s

g
g

p
g

to
ta

lli
n

g
£
9
0

m
ill

io
n
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

re
p

o
rt

s
th

a
t

m
o
re

th
a
n

£
8
0

m
ill

io
n

o
f

th
e

b
u

d
g
e
te

d
s
a
v
in

g
s

a
re

o
n

ta
rg

e
t

to
b
e

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

a
t

p
e

ri
o
d

n
in

e
.

A
ll

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
a
re

c
o
n
ti
n

u
in

g

to
d
e
v
e
lo

p
a
n

d
im

p
le

m
e

n
t

a
c
ti
o
n

p
la

n
s

a
n

d
th

e
p
o
s
it
io

n

is
b
e
in

g
c
lo

s
e
ly

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
.

s
p
e
n
t

a
t

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
,

h
o

w
e

v
e
r

th
is

w
a
s

o
ff
s
e
t

b
y

£
3
.6

m
ill

io
n

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

n
e
t

s
a
v
in

g
s
,

re
s
u
lt
in

g
in

a
£
1
.5

m
ill

io
n

u
n
d
e
r

s
p
e
n
d
.

T
h
e

m
a
in

re
a
s
o
n
s

fo
r

th
e

£
3
.6

m
ill

io
n

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

s
a
v
in

g
s

a
re

a
s

fo
llo

w
s
:

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

b
e
n
e
fi
te

d

fr
o
m

lo
w

e
r

d
e
b
t

in
te

re
s
t

c
o
s
ts

,
w

h
ic

h
w

e
re

£
3
.5 1

0
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

,

m
ill

io
n

lo
w

e
r

th
a
n

b
u
d
g
e
t.

Page 21



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 –
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 r

is
k
 a

re
a
s

K
e
y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

Is
s
u

e
P

ro
g

re
s
s

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
th

a
t

a
n
o
th

e
r

£
4

7

m
ill

io
n

in
s
a
v
in

g
s

w
ill

n
e

e
d

to
b
e

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

d
u
ri
n

g

2
0
1
2
/1

3
t

d
d

th
f

th
d

ti
t

l
l

M
o
re

o
v
e
r,

£
1
.6

m
ill

io
n

o
f

in
te

re
s
t

c
o
s
ts

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

c
a
p
it
a
lis

e
d

in
re

s
p
e
c
t

o
f

a
s
s
e
ts

u
n
d
e
r

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
.

T
h

A
th

it
l

i
d

d
d

it
i

l
£
5

3
2
0
1
2
/1

3
to

a
d

d
re

s
s

th
e

fu
rt

h
e
r

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n
s

to
lo

c
a
l

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

fu
n
d

in
g
.

A
g
a
in

s
t

a
b
a
c
k
d
ro

p
o
f

c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
d

d
e
m

a
n

d
p
re

s
s
u
re

s
in

A
d

u
lt

S
o
c
ia

l
C

a
re

a
n

d

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

it
w

ill
b

e
c
o
m

e
m

o
re

a
n
d

m
o
re

d
if
fi
c
u
lt

to
d
e
liv

e
r

th
e
s
e

s
a
v
in

g
s

in
a

w
a

y
th

a
t

s
e
c
u
re

s

lo
n
g
e
r

te
rm

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
a
n
d

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

a
ls

o
re

c
e
iv

e
d

a
n

a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l

£
5
.3

m
ill

io
n

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

N
e

w
H

o
m

e
s

B
o
n

u
s

s
c
h
e
m

e
.

T
h
e
s
e

s
a
v
in

g
s

w
e
re

p
a
rt

ly
o

ff
s
e
t

b
y

a
s
h
o

rt
fa

ll
in

S
e
c
ti
o
n

2
7
8

in
c
o
m

e
o
f

a
lm

o
s
t

£
2
.7

m
ill

io
n
,

th
e

n
e
e
d

to
fu

n
d

£
1
.3

m
ill

io
n

o
f

P
F

I
lia

b
ili

ti
e
s

fr
o
m

th
e

re
v
e
n
u

e

b
u
d
g

e
t

d
u
e

to
a

s
h
o
rt

fa
ll

in
b

u
d
g
e
te

d
c
a
p

it
a
l
re

c
e
ip

ts

a
n
d

th
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
o
f

a
£

1
2

m
ill

io
n

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

re
s
e
rv

e
T

h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

p
la

n
s

to
fu

rt
h
e
r

re
d
u
c
e

it
s

s
ta

ff

c
o
s
ts

b
y

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n

g
a
n
o
th

e
r

ro
u
n
d

o
f

it
s

E
a
rl

y

L
e
a
v
e
rs

’
In

it
ia

ti
v
e

(E
L
I)

in
2
0
1
1
/1

2
.

S
ta

ff
w

e
re

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
to

le
a
v
e

b
e
fo

re
3
1
s
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
1

w
h
ic

h

w
o

u
ld

e
n
a

b
le

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

to
s
a
v
e

th
re

e
m

o
n
th

s
o
f

c
o
s
ts

in
th

e
c
u
rr

e
n
t

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
y
e
a
r.

O
v
e
r

1
,0

0
0

s
ta

ff

m
e
m

b
e
rs

p
u
t

th
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s

fo
rw

a
rd

fo
r

th
is

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

a
n
d

th
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
o
f

a
£

1
.2

m
ill

io
n

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

re
s
e
rv

e

in
re

s
p
e
c
t

o
f
M

M
I

lia
b
ili

ti
e
s
.

T
h
e

re
s
e
rv

e
s
e

t
a
s
id

e
fo

r
th

e
E

a
rl

y
L

e
a
v
e
rs

In
it
ia

ti
v
e

w
a

s
n
o
t

fu
lly

u
ti
lis

e
d

in
y
e

a
r

a
s

s
o
m

e
c
o
s
ts

c
o
u
ld

b
e

m
e
t

fr
o
m

u
n
p
la

n
n

e
d

s
a
v
in

g
s

o
n

b
u
d
g

e
ts

.
T

h
e

re
m

a
in

in
g

re
s
e

rv
e

w
ill

b
e

c
a
rr

ie
d

fo
rw

a
rd

fo
r

u
s
e

in

fu
tu

re
ro

u
n
d
s

o
f

th
e

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

m
e
m

b
e
rs

p
u
t

th
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s

fo
rw

a
rd

fo
r

th
is

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

a
lt
h
o
u

g
h

it
is

u
n
lik

e
ly

th
a
t

a
ll

s
u
c
h

re
q
u
e
s
ts

w
ill

b
e

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
te

d
d
u
e

to
th

e
n
e
e
d

to
b

a
la

n
c
e

s
e
rv

ic
e

d
e
liv

e
ry

w
it
h

c
o
s
t

s
a
v
in

g
s
.

It
is

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
th

a
t

a

fu
rt

h
e
r

ro
u
n
d

w
ill

b
e

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
in

2
0
1
2
/1

3
.

fu
tu

re
ro

u
n
d
s

o
f

th
e

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
.

W
e

w
ill

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

fu
rt

h
e
r

w
o
rk

a
ro

u
n

d
th

e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
im

m
e
d
ia

te
a
n
d

lo
n
g

e
r-

te
rm

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l

p
la

n
s

o
v
e
r

th
e

c
o
m

in
g

m
o
n
th

s
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

w
ill

n
e

e
d

to
c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
to

m
o
n
it
o
r

th
e

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
s

to
a
p

p
ly

th
e

s
a
m

e
a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

w
ill

n
e

e
d

to
c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
to

m
o
n
it
o
r

th
e

re
a
s
o
n

a
b
le

n
e
s
s

a
n
d

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

n
e
s
s

o
f

it
s

c
o
m

p
o
n

e
n
ti
s
a
ti
o
n

p
o
lic

y
in

lin
e

w
it
h

a
n

y
g
u
id

a
n
c
e

re
le

a
s
e
d

b
y

th
e

A
u
d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
o
r

C
IP

F
A

.
T

h
is

is

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t

g
iv

e
n

th
e

m
o
v
e

to
H

R
A

s
e
lf
-

fi
n
a
n
c
in

g
fr

o
m

2
0
1
2
/1

3
a
s

d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o

n
b
e
c
o
m

e
s

a

c
h
a
r g

e
to

th
e

H
R

A
th

a
t

w
ill

n
o
t

b
e

re
v
e
rs

e
d
.

W
h
e
re

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
s

to
a
p

p
ly

th
e

s
a
m

e
a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

to
c
o
m

p
o
n
e

n
t

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n

g
o
f

H
R

A
a
s
s
e
ts

a
s

in

2
0
1
0
/1

1
,

w
h

e
re

b
y

o
n
ly

th
e

la
n
d

a
n
d

b
u
ild

in
g

e
le

m
e
n
ts

a
re

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
d

s
e
p
a
ra

te
ly

.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

a
la

rg
e
r

a
n
d

m
o
re

re
p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
a
m

p
le

o
f

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s

to

s
u
p
p
o
rt

th
is

p
o
lic

y
in

2
0
1
1
/1

2
a
n
d

th
is

e
x
e
rc

is
e

is

C
o

m
p

o
n

e
n

t 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g

g

th
e

d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n

c
h
a
rg

e
w

it
h
o
u
t

c
o
m

p
o
n

e
n
ti
s
a
ti
o

n

d
if
fe

rs
m

a
te

ri
a

lly
fr

o
m

th
a
t

w
h

ic
h

w
o

u
ld

b
e

c
h
a
rg

e
d

if

c
o
m

p
o
n

e
n
t

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n

g
h
a
d

b
e
e
n

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
,

th
is

w
ill

h
a
v
e

a
d
ir
e
c
t

im
p
a
c
t

o
n

th
e

s
u
rp

lu
s
/d

e
fi
c
it

re
p
o
rt

e
d
.

s
u
p
p
o
rt

th
is

p
o
lic

y
in

2
0
1
1
/1

2
a
n
d

th
is

e
x
e
rc

is
e

is

s
ti
ll

o
n
g

o
in

g
.

W
e

h
a
v
e

re
v
ie

w
e

d
th

e
in

it
ia

l
s
a
m

p
le

s
e
le

c
te

d
to

g
a
in

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

th
a
t

th
e

re
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

p
ro

v
id

e
a

m
a
te

ri
a
lly

a
c
c
u
ra

te
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

H
R

A
a
s
s
e
t

b
a

s
e
.

W
e

n
o

w
n
e
e
d

to
re

v
ie

w
th

e
fu

ll

o
u
tc

o
m

e
o
f

th
e

s
u
rv

e
y

b
e
fo

re
w

e
c
a

n
c
o
n

c
lu

d
e

o
n

th
is

m
a
tt
e
r

1
1

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

th
is

m
a
tt
e
r.

Page 22



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

re
e

 –
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 r

is
k
 a

re
a
s

K
e
y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

Is
s
u

e
P

ro
g

re
s
s

In
2
0
1
0
/1

1
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
e
le

c
te

d
n
o
t

to
a
p
p

ly

c
o
m

p
o
n

e
n
t

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n

g
to

it
s

H
R

A
a
s
s
e
ts

a
s

it
w

o
u

ld

n
o
t

h
a
v
e

h
a
d

a
m

a
te

ri
a
l

im
p
a
c
t

o
n

th
e

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l

T
h
e

re
s
u
lt
s

o
f

th
e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

e
x
e
rc

is
e

w
ill

b
e

re
v
ie

w
e

d
a
t

y
e

a
r-

e
n
d

to
e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

th
e

y
c
o
rr

o
b
o
ra

te

th
e

p
o
lic

y
in

p
la

c
e
.

W
e

w
ill

a
ls

o
e
x
p
e
c
t

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

n
o
t

h
a
v
e

h
a
d

a
m

a
te

ri
a
l

im
p
a
c
t

o
n

th
e

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.
W

e
n
e
e
d

to
g
a
in

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

th
a
t

th
is

p
o
lic

y
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e

s
to

b
e

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

in
2
0
1

1
/1

2
a
n
d

in

lig
h
t

o
f
a
n
y

n
e
w

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
.

th
e

p
o
lic

y
in

p
la

c
e
.

W
e

w
ill

a
ls

o
e
x
p
e
c
t

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

to
d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

th
a
t

th
e
re

is
n
o

m
a
te

ri
a
l

im
p
a
c
t

o
n

th
e

d
e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o

n
c
h
a
rg

e
a
s

a
re

s
u
lt

o
f

c
h
o
o
s
in

g
n
o
t

to
c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ti
s
e

o
th

e
r

th
a
n

a
s

la
n
d

a
n
d

b
u
ild

in
g
s
.

T
h
e

2
0
1
1
/1

2
C

o
d
e

in
c
lu

d
e
s

a
n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n

g

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
a

n
e

w
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t

to
c
a
rr

y

W
e

re
v
ie

w
e
d

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
p
ro

c
e
s
s

fo
r

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g

a
n
d

v
a
lu

in
g

to
h
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e

ts
to

g
a
in

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

g
g

q
y

‘h
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e
ts

’
a
t

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
.

H
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e
ts

in
c
lu

d
e

h
is

to
ri

c
a
l

b
u

ild
in

g
s
,

m
u
s
e
u
m

a
n

d
g
a
lle

ry

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

a
n
d

w
o
rk

s
o
f
a
rt

.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

n
e
e
d
s

to
re

v
ie

w
a
n

d
a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly

a
d
d
re

s
s

th
e
s
e

c
h
a
n
g

e
s

in
it
s

2
0
1
1
/1

2
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

g
g

g

th
a
t
th

is
w

a
s

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

.

F
ro

m
o
u
r

re
v
ie

w
o
f

w
o
rk

c
o
n
d

u
c
te

d
to

d
a
te

,
h
e
ri
ta

g
e

a
s
s
e
ts

w
ill

b
e

a
m

a
te

ri
a
l

b
a
la

n
c
e

in
th

e
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

a
n

d
th

e
re

fo
re

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

w
ill

b
e

re
q
u
ir
e
d

to
m

a
k
e

a
p
ri
o
r

p
e
ri
o
d

re
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t.

D
e
ta

ile
d

te
s
ti
n

g
o
n

th
e

a
s
s
e
ts

a
n
d

th
e

re
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

C
o

d
e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e
s

D
e
ta

ile
d

te
s
ti
n

g
o
n

th
e

a
s
s
e
ts

a
n
d

th
e

re
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

w
ill

b
e

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

a
t

y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

o
u
r

w
o
rk

o
n

fi
x
e
d

a
s
s
e
ts

.

1
2

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 23



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 f
o

u
r 

–
V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n

V
F

M
 a

u
d

it
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

B
a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

A
u
d
it
o
rs

 a
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 t

h
e
ir
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 V
F

M
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

t w
o
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

T
h
e
s
e

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

h
h

h
A

h
i

h
i

l
f

O
u
r 

V
F

M
 a

u
d
it
 d

ra
w

s
 h

e
a
v
ily

 o
n
 o

th
e
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

to
 

o
u
r 

V
F

M
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
la

s
t 

y
e
a
r’
s
 V

F
M

 a
u
d
it
. 

W
e
 

th
e
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 i
f 
m

o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 a

u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d

 i
n
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
. 

T
h
e

A
u
d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
h
a
s

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

a
ra

n
g
e

o
f
a
u
d
it

to
o
ls

a
n
d

O
u

r 
V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 h
o

w
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

s
e
c
u

re
s
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
il
ie

n
c
e
 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 p

ro
p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r:

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

s
ili

e
n
c
e
: 

lo
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
; 

a
n
d

c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 h

o
w

 i
t 
s
e
c
u
re

s
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
, 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
: 

lo
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
h
o
w

 t
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
in

g
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

ff
i

i
d

d
ti

it

T
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 t

o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

re
v
ie

w
 g

u
id

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 c

a
n
 d

ra
w

 u
p
o
n
 w

h
e
re

 r
e
le

v
a
n
t.

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 V

F
M

 a
u

d
it

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

T
h
e
 k

e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 V

F
M

 a
u
d
it
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

re
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
.

a
n

d
 c

h
a
ll

e
n

g
e
s
 h

o
w

 i
t 

s
e
c
u

re
s
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 

a
n

d
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
.

W
e
 f

o
ll
o

w
 a

 r
is

k
 b

a
s
e
d

 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
v
it
y
.

W
e
 f
o
llo

w
 a

 r
is

k
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
u
d
it
 e

ff
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 

g
re

a
te

s
t 
a
u
d
it
 r

is
k
. 

W
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e
s
e
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

. 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 t
a
rg

e
t 

a
u

d
it

 

e
ff

o
rt

 o
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 

g
re

a
te

s
t 

a
u

d
it

 r
is

k
. 

O
u

r
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
s
 i

n
 m

o
re

 

d
e
ta

il
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 V

F
M

 a
u

d
it

 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 o
p

e
ra

te
s
.

V
F

M
 a

u
d
it
 r

is
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

re
s
id

u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

ri
s
k

C
o
n
c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 

N
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

w
o
rk

 b
y
 

VFM 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 V
F

M
 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 (
if
 

a
n
y
)

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 

to
 s

e
c
u
re

 

V
F

M

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 &

 o
th

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 l
o
c
a
l 
ri
s
k
 b

a
s
e
d
 

w
o
rk

conclusion

o
th

e
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

w
o
rk

1
3

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 24



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 f
o

u
r 

–
V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
s

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

In
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
-b

a
s
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

o
n
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 p

a
g
e
, 

w
e
 

h
a
v
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 k

e
y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

is
k
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

to
 

V
F

M
l

i

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

w
o
rk

 b
y
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
, 

o
th

e
r 

in
s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

th
e
s
e
 r

is
k
 a

re
a
s
; 

a
n
d

c
o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

o
 w

h
a
t 

e
x
te

n
t 

w
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
ri
s
k
-

b
a
s
e
d

w
o
rk

.

W
e

 h
a

v
e
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

w
o

 

s
p

e
c
if

ic
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
s

.

A
t

t
tl

o
u
r 

V
F

M
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
;

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 r

is
k
s
 f

o
r 

o
u
r 

V
F

M
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
, 

ta
k
in

g
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 
w

o
rk

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 o
r 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
u
d
it
; 

a
n
d
 

b
a
s
e
d
 w

o
rk

.

K
e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s

B
e
lo

w
 w

e
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

o
u
r 

p
re

lim
in

a
ry

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

th
o
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 

w
h
e
re

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

 r
e
s
id

u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 r

is
k
 f

o
r 

o
u
r 

V
F

M
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
, 

W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
u
r 

fi
n
a
l 
c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

IS
A

 2
6
0
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

A
t 

p
re

s
e
n

t 
w

e
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y

g
a
th

e
ri

n
g

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 t

o
 g

a
in

 

a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

th
e
s
e
 r

is
k
 a

re
a
s
 a

re
 

a
d

e
q

u
a
te

.

O
u

r 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 f

o
c
u

s
s
e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

fo
ll
o

w
in

g
 a

re
a
s
:

K
e
y
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
R

is
k
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 l

in
k
 t

o
 V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
P

re
li
m

in
a
ry

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t/
fo

c
u

s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

n
e
e
d

e
d

to
d
e
liv

e
r

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

s
a
v
in

g
s

d
u
ri
n

g
2
0
1
1
/1

2
to

a
c
h
ie

v
e

it
s

b
a
la

n
c
e

d
b
u
d
g
e
t.

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

fu
n
d
in

g
in

2
0
1
1
/1

2
h
a
s

b
e
e

n
re

d
u
c
e

d

b
y

£
5
0

m
ill

io
n

a
n
d

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

fo
re

c
a
s
ts

th
a
t

A
s

n
o
te

d
in

th
e

p
re

v
io

u
s

s
e
c
ti
o
n
,

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

it
s

p
la

n
n
e

d
£
9
0

m
ill

io
n

s
a
v
in

g
s

in
2
0
1
1
/1

2

a
n
d

w
a

s
u
n
d

e
r

s
p
e
n
t

o
n

it
s

re
v
e
n
u

e
b
u

d
g
e

t
b

y
£

1
.5

m
ill

io
n

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

n
d

in
g

 –

s
a
v
in

g
s
 p

la
n

s

P
u

b
li

c
 H

e
a
lt

h

b
y

£
5
0

m
ill

io
n

a
n
d

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

fo
re

c
a
s
ts

th
a
t

th
e
re

w
ill

b
e

a
re

a
l

te
rm

s
re

d
u
c
ti
o

n
in

g
ra

n
ts

a
v
a
ila

b
le

o
f

£
1
7
9

m
ill

io
n

b
y

2
0
1
4
/1

5
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
th

a
t

a
n
o
th

e
r

£
4
7

m
ill

io
n

in

s
a
v
in

g
s

w
ill

n
e

e
d

to
b
e

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

d
u
ri

n
g

2
0
1

2
/1

3
to

a
d
d
re

s
s

th
e

fu
rt

h
e
r

re
d
u
c
ti
o

n
s

to
fu

n
d
in

g
.

A
g
a
in

s
t

a
b
a
c
k
d
ro

p
o

f
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

d
e
m

a
n
d

p
re

s
s
u

re
s

in

m
ill

io
n
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

n
e
e
d
s

to
c
o

n
ti
n
u
e

to
c
lo

s
e
ly

m
o
n
it
o
r

it
s

M
e
d
iu

m
T

e
rm

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l
P

la
n

a
n
d

m
a

n
a
g

e
it
s

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l

p
re

s
s
u
re

s
a
s

th
e

2
0

1
1
/1

2
u
n

d
e
r

s
p
e

n
d

is
la

rg
e
ly

d
u
e

to
u
n
b
u

d
g
e
te

d
in

c
o
m

e
o
f

£
6

m
ill

io
n

fr
o
m

th
e

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e

n
t

o
f

H
e
a
lt
h

a
n

d
u
n
b
u

d
g
e
te

d
s
a
v
in

g
s

o
n

d
e
b
t

c
o
s
ts

w
h

ic
h

c
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
ly

h
a
d

a
+

£
1
1

1
m

ill
io

n

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

n
d

in
g

 –

s
a

v
in

g
s
 

a
b
a
c
k
d
ro

p
o

f
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

d
e
m

a
n
d

p
re

s
s
u

re
s

in

A
d
u
lt

S
o
c
ia

l
C

a
re

a
n
d

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

it
w

ill

b
e
c
o
m

e
m

o
re

a
n
d

m
o
re

d
if
fi
c
u
lt

to
d
e
liv

e
r

th
e
s
e

s
a
v
in

g
s

in
a

w
a

y
th

a
t

s
e
c
u
re

s
lo

n
g

e
r

te
rm

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l

a
n
d

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

p
la

n
s

to
d
e
liv

e
r

a
n

o
th

e
r

ro
u
n
d

o
f

it
s

E
a

rl
y

L
e

a
v
e
rs

’
In

it
ia

ti
v
e

in
2
0
1
2
/1

3
w

h
ic

h
w

ill

d
e
b
t

c
o
s
ts

w
h

ic
h

c
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
ly

h
a
d

a
+

£
1
1
.1

m
ill

io
n

im
p
a
c
t
o
v
e
ra

ll.

T
h
e

n
e
x
t

s
te

p
s

o
f

o
u
r

w
o

rk
w

ill
in

v
o

lv
e

c
ri
ti
c
a
lly

a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
th

e
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

h
a
s

in
p
la

c
e

to

e
n
s
u
re

a
s
o
u

n
d

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
s
ta

n
d
in

g
,

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

th
a
t

it
s

M
e
d
iu

m
T

e
rm

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l
P

la
n

h
a
s

d
u
ly

ta
k
e
n

in
to

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

th
e

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l

fu
rt

h
e
r

fu
n
d
in

g
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s

p
la

n
s

it
s

E
a

rl
y

L
e

a
v
e
rs

In
it
ia

ti
v
e

in
2
0
1
2
/1

3
w

h
ic

h
w

ill

e
n
a
b
le

it
to

d
e
liv

e
r

s
o
m

e
o
f
th

e
re

q
u
ir
e
d

s
a
v
in

g
s
.

H
o

w
e
v
e
r,

w
it
h

c
o
n
ti
n
u

in
g

c
u
ts

to
s
ta

ff
n
u
m

b
e
rs

,
th

e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

n
e
e

d
s

to
e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

it
c
a
re

fu
lly

b
a
la

n
c
e
s

s
e
rv

ic
e

d
e
liv

e
ry

w
it
h

c
o
s
t

s
a
v
in

g
s
.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

w
ill

n
e

e
d

to
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
a
n
d

m
a
n

a
g
e

it
s

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

th
e

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l

fu
rt

h
e
r

fu
n
d
in

g
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
.

It
s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y

ro
b

u
s
t

to
e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

c
a
n

c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
to

p
ro

v
id

e
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

.

W
e

w
ill

a
ls

o
re

v
ie

w
w

h
a
t

im
p
a
c
t,

if
a
n

y
,

th
e

E
L
I

h
a
s

h
a
d

o
n

s
e
rv

ic
e

q
u
a
lit

y
.

1
4

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

s
a
v
in

g
s

p
la

n
s

s
o

a
s

to
s
e
c
u
re

lo
n

g
e
r

te
rm

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l

a
n
d

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
.

Page 25



S
e

c
ti
o

n
 f
o

u
r 

–
V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
s

K
e
y
 V

F
M

 r
is

k
R

is
k
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 l

in
k
 t

o
 V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
P

re
li
m

in
a
ry

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t

L
e
e
d
s

C
it
y

C
o
u
n
c
il

a
re

a
c
q
u
ir

in
g

th
e

W
e

h
a
v
e

h
e
ld

in
it
ia

l
d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s

w
it
h

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

fo
r

p
u
b
lic

h
e

a
lt
h

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

fr
o
m

L
e
e
d
s

P
ri
m

a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru

s
t.

T
h
is

tr
a
n
s
fe

r
b
ri
n
g
s

a
b
o
u
t

s
e

v
e
ra

l
ri
s
k
s

th
a
t

w
ill

n
e
e
d

to
b
e

m
a
n
a
g

e
d

c
a
re

fu
lly

b
y

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
:

•
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
ri
s
k
s

fr
o
m

th
e

d
e
liv

e
ry

o
f

a
n
e

w
le

s
s

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

K
P

M
G

’s
h
e
a
lt
h

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
ts

a
ro

u
n

d

w
h

a
t

th
e

k
e

y
ri
s
k
s

o
f

th
e

tr
a
n
s
fe

r
a
re

a
n

d
h
o

w
th

e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

p
la

n
s

to
d
e
a
l
w

it
h

th
is

.

T
h
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

is
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

in
th

e
p
ro

c
e
s
s

o
f

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g

th
e

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s

to
s
u
p
p
o
rt

th
e

d
e
liv

e
ry

o
f

p
u
b
lic

h
e

a
lt
h

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

a
n
d

h
a

s
a

jo
in

t
a
p
p

o
in

tm
e
n
t

w
it
h

P
u

b
li

c
 

H
e
a
lt

h

•
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
ri
s
k
s

fr
o
m

th
e

d
e
liv

e
ry

o
f

a
n
e

w
,

le
s
s

fa
m

ili
a
r

s
e
rv

ic
e
;

•
h
o

w
th

e
s
e
rv

ic
e

fi
ts

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

a
lly

a
n

d

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
lly

w
it
h
in

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

;

•
e
n
s
u
ri

n
g

th
a
t

c
lin

ic
a
l

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

a
re

m
e
t.

th
e

P
ri
m

a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru

s
t

fo
r

th
e

D
ir
e
c
to

r
o
f

th
e

s
e
rv

ic
e

w
h
o

is
o
v
e
rs

e
e
in

g
th

e
tr

a
n
s
it
io

n
.

W
e

h
a
v
e

a
g
re

e
d

to
fa

c
ili

ta
te

a
w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

to
a
id

th
e

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s

a
ro

u
n
d

th
e

k
e

y
ri
s
k
s

o
f

th
e

tr
a
n
s
fe

r
a
n

d

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

a
c
ti
o
n
s
.

T
h
e

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p

is
lik

e
ly

to
in

v
o
lv

e

th
e

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

m
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t

o
f

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

a
n
d

o
th

e
r

T
h
is

is
re

le
v
a

n
t

to
b
o
th

th
e

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
re

s
ili

e
n
c
e

a
n
d

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
,

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y

a
n
d

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e

n
e
s
s

c
ri
te

ri
a

o
f
th

e
V

F
M

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
.

g
y

k
e

y
s
ta

k
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

b
y

th
e

jo
in

t
D

ir
e
c
to

r
o
f

P
u
b
lic

H
e
a
lt
h
.

1
5

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 26



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

Im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

u
d

it

D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

rs
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

y
e
a
r 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 h
a
v
e
 

ra
is

e
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
. 

 

N
o

.
Is

s
u

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 m
a
d

e
 b

y
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

Im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 o
u

r 
a
u

d
it

1
P

a
y
ro

ll
is

s
u

e
s

W
e

w
ill

p
e
rf

o
rm

m
o
re

d
e
ta

ile
d

te
s
ti
n
g

o
n

b
a
la

n
c
e
s

re
la

ti
n

g
to

S
o

m
e
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u

d
it

’s
 

fi
n

d
in

g
s
 w

il
l 
h

a
v
e
 a

 d
ir

e
c
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 o
u

r 
y
e
a
r 

e
n

d
 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti

v
e
 t

e
s
ti

n
g

.

y

In
te

rn
a
l

A
u
d
it

id
e
n
ti
fi
e

d
s
e
v
e
ra

l
is

s
u
e
s

w
it
h

re
g
a
rd

s
to

c
o
n

tr
o
ls

o
v
e
r

le
a
v
e
rs

a
n
d

c
h
a
n

g
e
s

to
th

e
s
ta

n
d
in

g
d
a
ta

o
n

th
e

p
a

y
ro

ll

s
y
s
te

m
,

a
s

fo
llo

w
s
:

F
o
r

th
re

e
o
u
t

o
f

2
5

le
a
v
e
rs

,
a

p
a

y
ro

ll
s
im

u
la

ti
o
n

re
p
o
rt

h
a
d

n
o
t

b
e
e
n

ru
n

m
e
a

n
in

g
th

a
t

th
e
re

w
a

s
a

ri
s
k

th
a

t
th

e
le

a
v
e
r’
s

fi
n
a
l

t
h

d
b

l
l

t
d

i
tl

I
b

th

p
g

g

p
a

y
ro

ll
a
t

y
e

a
r-

e
n
d

to
g
a
in

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

o
v
e
r

th
e

c
o
m

p
le

te
n

e
s
s
,

e
x
is

te
n
c
e

a
n
d

a
c
c
u
ra

c
y

o
f

s
ta

ff
c
o
s
ts

.

S
in

c
e

e
rr

o
n

e
o

u
s

c
h
a
n
g
e
s

to
b
a
n
k

d
e
ta

ils
a
re

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
to

b
e

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

b
y

th
e

in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
a
ff
e
c
te

d
,

w
e

d
o

n
o
t

c
o
n
s
id

e
r

th
e
s
e

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r
is

s
u

e
s

to
h
a
v
e

a
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

im
p
a
c
t

o
n

o
u
r

a
u
d
it

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

D
e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
’s

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 a

re
 

c
o

n
ta

in
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

is
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

. 
 

p
a

y
m

e
n
t

h
a
d

b
e
e
n

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d

in
c
o
rr

e
c
tl
y
.

In
b
o
th

c
a
s
e
s
,

In
te

rn
a
l
A

u
d

it
v
e
ri
fi
e
d

th
a
t

n
o

o
v
e
r-

o
r

u
n
d
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
t

h
a

d
b
e
e

n

m
a
d
e
.

F
o
r

o
n
e

o
u
t

o
f

2
5

le
a
v
e
rs

,
th

e
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e

w
a
s

fo
u
n
d

to
h

a
v
e

fo
u
r

d
a

y
s

o
f

a
n
n
u

a
l

le
a
v
e

o
u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g

a
t

th
e

d
a
te

o
f

te
rm

in
a
ti
o

n
a
n

d
th

e
re

w
a
s

n
o

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

th
a
t

a
p
a

y
m

e
n
t

fo
r

th
e

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
.

W
e

w
ill

fo
llo

w
u
p

In
te

rn
a
l

A
u
d
it
’s

o
n
g

o
in

g
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o

n
s

in
to

th
e

is
s
u
e
s

ra
is

e
d

a
n
d

c
o
n
s
id

e
r

w
h

e
th

e
r

th
e

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s

h
a
v
e

a

fu
rt

h
e
r

im
p
a
c
t

o
n

o
u
r

a
u

d
it

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

b
e
fo

re
w

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e

o
u
r

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d

te
s
ti
n
g

o
f
p
a
y
ro

ll.

le
a
v
e

o
w

e
d

h
a
d

b
e

e
n

p
a
id

.
T

h
is

is
s
u
e

is
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

u
n

d
e

r

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n

b
y

In
te

rn
a
l
A

u
d
it
.

F
o
r

tw
o

o
u
t

o
f

5
0

c
h
a
n

g
e
s

to
p
a

y
ro

ll
s
ta

n
d
in

g
d
a
ta

te
s
te

d
,

th
e

c
h
a
n
g

e
re

q
u
e
s
t

h
a
d

n
o
t

b
e
e

n
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
.

T
h
e

c
h
a
n
g

e
s

in
q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

re
la

te
d

to
th

e
p
a

y
m

e
n
t

o
f

w
a
g

e
s

to
c
a
s
u
a
l

w
o

rk
e
rs

o
n

th
e

b
a
s
is

o
f

C
a
s
u
a
l

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
C

la
im

fo
rm

s
.

T
h
e
s
e

tw
o

it
e
m

s
w

ill
n
o

w
b
e

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
in

m
o
re

d
e
ta

il
to

a
s
s
e

s
s

w
h
e
th

e
r

th
e

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

w
e
re

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

.

F
o
r

o
n
e

o
u
t

o
f

5
0

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n
ts

,
a

c
h
a
n
g
e

to
b
a
n
k

d
e
ta

ils
w

a
s

re
q
u
e
s
te

d
v
ia

a
fo

rm
a
tt
a
c
h
e

d
to

a
n

e
m

a
il

fr
o
m

a
n
o
n
-L

e
e
d
s

C
it
y

C
o

u
n
c
il

e
m

a
il

a
c
c
o

u
n
t

a
n
d

w
a

s
a
c
ti
o
n
e
d

b
y

p
a

y
ro

ll.

In
te

rn
a
l
A

u
d
it

e
x
p

e
c
t

th
a
t

a
n

e
rr

o
n
e
o

u
s

c
h
a
n

g
e

to
b
a
n
k

d
e
ta

ils
p

g

w
o

u
ld

b
e

p
ic

k
e

d
u
p

b
y

th
e

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
a
ff
e
c
te

d
.

N
o

is
s
u
e
s

h
a

v
e

b
e
e
n

ra
is

e
d

b
y

th
e

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e

to
d
a
te

.

1
6

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 27



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

Im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

N
o

.
Is

s
u

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 m
a
d

e
 b

y
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

Im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 o
u

r 
a
u

d
it

2
O

d
i

d
t

T
h

t
l

k
ld

if
t

d
t

th
th

2
O

rd
e
ri

n
g

a
n

d
p

a
y
m

e
n

ts

In
te

rn
a
l

A
u

d
it

te
s
te

d
2
5

it
e

m
s

o
f

e
x
p
e
n

d
it
u
re

a
n

d
fo

u
n

d
th

e

fo
llo

w
in

g
c
o

n
tr

o
l

w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e

s
w

h
ic

h
h

a
v
e

a
n

im
p
a
c
t

o
n

o
u
r

re
lia

n
c
e

o
n

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

o
v
e
r

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

a
n
d

c
re

d
it
o
rs

:

•
F

o
r

fi
v
e

o
u
t

o
f

2
5

it
e
m

s
te

s
te

d
,

o
rd

e
rs

w
e

re
ra

is
e
d

a
ft
e
r

re
c
e
iv

in
g

th
e

in
v
o
ic

e
.

T
h
e
re

c
o
u
ld

b
e

a
ri

s
k

th
a
t

u
n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d

T
h
e
s
e

c
o
n
tr

o
l

w
e

a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s

w
o
u

ld
,

if
c
o
rr

e
c
te

d
,

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

o
v
e
r

o
rd

e
ri
n
g

a
n
d

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

.

T
h
e

m
a
in

ri
s
k
s

re
la

ti
n

g
to

th
e
s
e

is
s
u
e
s

re
la

te
to

v
a
lu

e
fo

r

m
o
n
e

y
m

a
tt
e
rs

a
s

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

m
a

y
o
rd

e
r

g
o
o
d
s

o
r

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

w
h

ic
h

a
re

n
o
t

re
q
u
ir
e

d
o
r

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l

to
s
e
rv

ic
e

d
e
liv

e
ry

.
In

a
d
d
it
io

n
,

it
m

a
y

b
e

p
a

y
in

g
fo

r
g
o
o
d
s

o
r

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

w
h

ic
h

w
e
re

n
o

t
re

c
e
iv

in
g

th
e

in
v
o
ic

e
.

T
h
e
re

c
o
u
ld

b
e

a
ri

s
k

th
a
t

u
n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d

a
n
d
/o

r
u
n
e
s
s
e

n
ti
a
l

g
o
o

d
s

a
re

b
e
in

g
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d

o
n

b
e
h

a
lf

o
f

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

.

•
F

o
r

th
re

e
o
u
t

o
f

2
5

it
e
m

s
te

s
te

d
,

th
e

s
a
m

e
p
e
rs

o
n

w
h

o

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d

th
e

o
rd

e
r,

re
c
e
ip

te
d

th
e

g
o
o
d
s
.

T
h
is

is
n
o
t

in
lin

e
w

it
h

c
u
rr

e
n
t
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
a
t

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

.

F
t

f
2
5

it
t

t
d

th
d

t
i

t
d

d
e
liv

e
re

d
a
n
d
/o

r
w

e
re

n
o
t

o
f

a
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t

q
u
a
lit

y
.

H
o

w
e
v
e
r,

th
e

is
s
u
e
s

ra
is

e
d

d
o

n
o
t

h
a
v
e

a
d
ir
e
c
t

im
p
a
c
t

o
n

th
e

e
x
te

rn
a
l

a
u
d
it

b
e
c
a
u
s
e

in
a
ll

c
a
s
e
s

s
e
g
re

g
a

ti
o
n

o
f

d
u
ti
e
s

w
a

s

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d

in
th

e
o
rd

e
ri
n
g

a
n
d

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
p
ro

c
e
s
s

w
h
ic

h

m
it
ig

a
te

s
th

e
ri
s
k

th
a
t

u
n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e

d
a
n
d
/o

r
fr

a
u

d
u
le

n
t

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s

w
e
re

m
a
d
e
.

A
s

s
u
c
h
,

th
e
s
e

w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s

d
o

n
o
t

•
F

o
r

o
n
e

o
u
t

o
f

2
5

it
e
m

s
te

s
te

d
,

th
e

g
o

o
d
s

w
e

re
n

o
t

re
c
e
ip

te
d

o
n

th
e

s
y
s
te

m
,

d
e
s
p
it
e

th
e

o
rd

e
r

v
a
lu

e
b
e
in

g
o
v
e
r

th
e

th
re

s
h
o
ld

fo
r

d
o
in

g
s
o
.

W
h
e
re

g
o

o
d
s

a
re

n
o
t

m
a
rk

e
d

a
s

re
c
e
ip

te
d
,

th
e
re

is

a
ri
s
k

th
a
t

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

p
a

y
s

fo
r

g
o
o
d
s
/s

e
rv

ic
e
s

n
o
t

a
c
tu

a
lly

re
c
e
iv

e
d
.

h
a
v
e

a
d

ir
e
c
t

im
p
a
c
t

o
n

o
u
r

a
u
d
it

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

to
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
s

a
n
d

c
re

d
it
o
rs

.

1
7

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 28



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

F
o

ll
o

w
-u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

T
h
is

 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 o

u
r 

In
te

ri
m

 A
u
d
it
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 a

n
d
 r

e
-

it
e
ra

te
s
 a

n
y
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 s

ti
ll 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
. 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 a
ll
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 i
n

 o
u

r 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

: 

In
c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
re

p
o

rt
 

2

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 i
n

 y
e
a
r 

o
r 

s
u

p
e
rs

e
d

e
d

 
1

In
te

ri
m

 A
u

d
it

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
. 

W
e
 r

e
-i

te
ra

te
 t

h
e
 i

m
p

o
rt

a
n

c
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 

R
e
m

a
in

 o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 (
re

-i
te

ra
te

d
 b

e
lo

w
)

1

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s
u

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

S
ta

tu
s
 a

s
 a

t 
A

p
ri

l

O
f

O
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 a
s
 a

 m
a
tt

e
r 

o
f 

u
rg

e
n

c
y
.

1
O

v
e
rt

im
e

p
a
y
m

e
n

t
a
u

th
o

ri
s
a
ti

o
n

In
te

rn
a
l

A
u

d
it

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

th
a
t

th
e
re

w
e
re

1
0

in
s
ta

n
c
e
s

o
u
t

o
f

a
s
a
m

p
le

o
f

3
0

w
h
e
re

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

to
p
a

y
ro

ll
d

a
ta

h
a
d

n
o
t

b
e
e
n

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
.

A
ll

1
0

o
f

th
e
s
e

in
s
ta

n
c
e
s

re
la

te
d

to
o
v
e
rt

im
e

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

W
h
ils

t
th

e
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s

fo
r

a
u
th

o
ri
s
in

g
o
v
e
rt

im
e

p
a

y
m

e
n
ts

a
re

g
e
n
e
ra

lly
s
o
u
n

d
,

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

a
re

to
b
e

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
in

o
rd

e
r

to
s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n

th
e

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

:

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

S
u
p

p
o
rt

C
e
n
tr

e
to

u
p
d

a
te

a
n

d

m
a
in

ta
in

a
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o

n
lis

ts
p
ri
o
r

to
th

e

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

In
te

rn
a
l

A
u
d
it

id
e
n
ti
fi
e

d

th
a
t

tw
o

o
u
t

o
f

th
e

fo
u
r

p
a

y
m

e
n
ts

to
c
a
s
u
a

l

c
la

im
a

n
ts

te
s
te

d
h
a
d

n
o
t

b
e
e
n

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d

in
s
ta

n
c
e
s

re
la

te
d

to
o
v
e
rt

im
e

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

.

In
te

rn
a
l

A
u
d
it

h
a
v
e

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

fu
rt

h
e
r

te
s
ti
n
g

o
n

th
is

to
a
s
c
e
rt

a
in

:

a
)

If
th

is
w

a
s

a
w

id
e
r

is
s
u
e

fo
r

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

;

a
n
d

m
a
in

ta
in

a
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o

n
lis

ts
p
ri
o
r

to
th

e

in
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f
th

e
S

e
lf

s
e
rv

ic
e

fa
c
ili

ty
.

A
u
th

o
ri
s
in

g
o
ff
ic

e
rs

to
b
e

re
m

in
d
e
d

th
a
t

re
le

v
a

n
t

d
o
c
u

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

to
s
u
p
p
o
rt

o
v
e
rt

im
e

p
a

y
m

e
n
ts

s
h
o

u
ld

b
e

re
ta

in
e

d
in

lin
e

w
it
h

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

R
u
le

s

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
d
u
ri
n
g

2
0
1
1
/1

2
.

In
te

rn
a
l

A
u
d

it
a
re

d
u

e
to

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
m

o
re

d
e
ta

ile
d

a
u
d
it

o
f

o
v
e
rt

im
e

p
a

y
m

e
n
ts

la
te

r
in

th
e

a
n
d

b
)

If
th

e
s
e

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

w
e
re

c
o
rr

e
c
t

d
e
s
p
it
e

th
e

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g

in
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

.

T
h
e

re
s
u
lt

o
f

th
is

te
s
ti
n
g

fo
u

n
d

th
a
t

th
e

1
0

in
s
ta

n
c
e
s

m
e
n

ti
o
n
e
d

a
b

o
v
e

h
a
d

b
e
e

n
p
a
id

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

s
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

R
u
le

s
.

S
p
e
c
if
ic

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

to
im

p
le

m
e

n
t

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts

to
o
v
e
rt

im
e

a
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o

n
a
n
d

c
h
e
c
k
in

g

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
.

In
a
d
d
it
io

n
In

te
rn

a
l

A
u
d

it
a
re

to
u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

p
y

y
e
a
r.

p

c
o
rr

e
c
tl
y
.

F
u
rt

h
e
r

te
s
ti
n
g

o
f

a
n

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l

2
5

in
s
ta

n
c
e
s

fo
u
n
d

1
/2

5
w

h
e
re

a
n

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
t

w
a

s

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
,

th
is

is
n
o
w

b
e
in

g
re

c
la

im
e
d
.

f

p
e
ri
o

d
ic

s
a
m

p
le

c
h
e
c
k
s

w
it
h
in

a
re

a
s

o
f

h
ig

h

s
p
e
n
d

a
n

d
o
v
e
rt

im
e

w
ill

c
o

n
ti
n
u
e

to
b
e

a
n

a
re

a
s
c
ru

ti
n
is

e
d

u
n
d
e
r

b
u

d
g
e
t

m
o
n

it
o
ri

n
g

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

.

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
rs

:
C

h
ie

f
O

ff
ic

e
r

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l

1
8

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

T
h
e

to
ta

l
a
m

o
u
n
t

o
f

o
v
e
rt

im
e

p
a
id

in
2
0
1

0
-

1
1

w
a
s

le
s
s

th
a
n

o
u
r

a
u
d
it

m
a
te

ri
a
lit

y

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

D
u
e

d
a
te

:
O

c
t
2
0
1
1

Page 29



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

F
o

ll
o

w
-u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

N
o

.
R

is
k

Is
s
u

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

S
ta

tu
s
 a

s
 a

t 
A

p
ri

l 

2
0
1
2

2
B

e
n

e
fi

ts
O

v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
R

e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

–
C

o
u

n
c
il

T
h
is

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

h
a
s

n
o

im
p
a
c
t

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

T
e
n

a
n

ts

T
h
is

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

ta
k
e
s

p
la

c
e

to
e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

th
e

d
e
b
to

r

fi
g
u
re

in
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

in
re

s
p
e
c
t

o
f

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

to
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

c
la

im
a
n
ts

is
c
o
rr

e
c
t.

B
e
n
e
a
th

th
is

th
e
re

is
a

fu
rt

h
e
r

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n

w
h

ic
h

a
p

p
o
rt

io
n
s

th
e

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

b
e
tw

e
e
n

d
if
fe

re
n
t

h
e
a
d
in

g
s
/b

e
n
e
fi
t

ty
p
e
s
.

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
s
u
b
s
id

y
c
la

im
.

T
h
e

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

fo
rm

s
p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

p
ro

c
e
s
s

fo
r

a
p
p
o
rt

io
n
in

g
th

e
b
e
n
e
fi
t

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
t

d
e
b
to

r
o
v
e
r

a
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
.

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

o
n
ly

th
e

fi
n
a
l

p
u
b
lis

h
e

d
a
p
p

o
rt

io
n
m

e
n
t

o
f

th
e

d
e
b
to

r,

l
t

d
t

th
d

i
b
j

t

T
h
is

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

w
a

s
te

s
te

d
a
g
a
in

in

2
0
1
1
/1

2
a
n
d

th
e

is
s
u
e

w
a
s

fo
u
n
d

to

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

fu
lly

re
s
o
lv

e
d
.

W
e

re
-p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

th
e

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

O
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

fo
r

q
u
a
rt

e
r

o
n
e

a
n
d

fo
u
n
d
:

T
h
e

fi
g
u
re

fo
r

to
ta

l
b
e
n

e
fi
t

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

fo
r

C
o
u
n
c
il

T
e
n
a
n
ts

o
n

th
e

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
w

a
s

£
3
,8

6
7
,8

1
3
.6

7
.

W
e

fo
u
n
d

h
o

w
e

v
e
r

th
a
t

th
is

d
id

n
o
t

a
g
re

e
to

th
e

u
n
d
e
rl

y
in

g

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

a
t

th
e

y
e
a
r

e
n
d
,

is
s
u
b
je

c
t

to
a

fu
ll

a
n
d

d
e
ta

ile
d

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n

a
n

d

re
v
ie

w
.

O
ff
ic

e
rs

h
a
v
e

n
o

w
in

tr
o
d
u
c
e
d

a

q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y
re

v
ie

w
o
f

th
is

a
p
p
o

rt
io

n
m

e
n
t

to
e
n
s
u
re

a
c
c
u
ra

c
y

th
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t

th
e

y
e
a
r.

fo
u
n
d

h
o

w
e

v
e
r,

th
a
t

th
is

d
id

n
o
t

a
g
re

e
to

th
e

u
n
d
e
rl

y
in

g

A
c
a
d
e
m

y
re

p
o

rt
.

T
h
e

to
ta

l
b
e
n
e
fi
t

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

fo
r

C
o
u
n
c
il

T
e
n
a
n
ts

w
a
s

£
8
5
1
,6

5
0
.2

6
.

T
h
e

fi
g
u
re

s
fo

r
th

e
s
e

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

h
a
d

n
o
t

b
e

e
n

e
n
te

re
d

c
o
rr

e
c
tl
y

in
to

th
e

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e
s
e

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s

w
o

rk
o

n
a

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

b
a
s
is

.
T

h
is

R
e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r:

S
e
n
io

r
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

(C
e
n
tr

a
l
&

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
)

D
u
e

d
a
te

:
J
u
ly

2
0
1
1
.

T
h
e
s
e

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s

w
o

rk
o

n
a

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

b
a
s
is

.
T

h
is

m
e
a
n
s

th
a
t

a
t

q
u
a
rt

e
r

tw
o

a
n
d

e
a
c
h

o
f

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g

q
u
a
rt

e
rs

,
th

e
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

is
p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d

a
g
a
in

.
A

s
s
u
c
h

a
n
y

p
re

v
io

u
s

e
rr

o
rs

w
o
u
ld

b
e

e
ra

d
ic

a
te

d
.

W
e

re
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
th

a
t,

in
lin

e
w

it
h

c
u
rr

e
n
t

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
,

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

th
o
ro

u
g
h

ly
re

v
ie

w
th

is
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

a
t

th
e

y
e

a
r

e
n
d

to
e

n
s
u
re

th
e

fi
g
u
re

s
u
s
e
d

a
re

a
c
c
u
ra

te
a
n

d

fu
lly

a
g
re

e
to

th
e

s
o
u
rc

e
s
y
s
te

m
s
.

If
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

fe
e
l

it
is

in
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

to
v
e
ri
fy

b
e
n

e
fi
t

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

b
y

ty
p
e

o
n

a
q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y
b

a
s
is

,

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

g
iv

e
n

to
re

-d
e
s
ig

n
in

g
th

e

t
l

t
d

t
k

th
i

d
t

il
d

i
t

d

1
9

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

c
o
n
tr

o
l

to
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

th
is

d
e
ta

ile
d

re
v
ie

w
a

t
y
e
a
r

e
n

d

o
n
ly

.

Page 30



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

K
e
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

IT
)

N
o

R
is

k
Is

s
u

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e
/ 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
r/

 d
u

e
 

d
a
te

1
F

M
S

S
ta

rt
e
r’

s
P

ro
c
e
s
s

A
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

w
a
s

n
o
t

re
ta

in
e
d

fo
r

n
e

w
s
ta

rt
e
rs

w
h

o
w

e
re

g
ra

n
te

d
a
c
c
e
s
s

to
F

M
S

.
W

e
n
o
te

d
th

a
t

o
u
t

o
f

o
u
r

s
a
m

p
le

o
f

1
5

u
s
e
rs

,
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

w
a
s

n
o
t

re
ta

in
e
d

fo
r

fo
u
r

o
f

th
e

m
.

W
e
a
k

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

a
ro

u
n
d

th
e

s
ta

rt
e
r’
s

p
ro

c
e
s
s

in
c
re

a
s
e
s

th
e

ri
s
k

o
f

u
n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e

d
a
c
c
e
s
s

to
th

e
s
y
s
te

m
w

h
ic

h
c
o
u
ld

im
p

a
c
t

o
n

th
e

i
t

it
f
fi

i
l
d

t

T
h
e

ro
le

o
f

s
y
s
te

m
c
o
n
tr

o
lle

rs
is

n
o

w
b
e

in
g

c
e
n
tr

a
lis

e
d

in
o
rd

e
r

to
e
n
s
u
re

b
e
tt
e
r

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

w
it
h

a
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

.
It

s
h
o

u
ld

h
o

w
e
v
e
r

b
e

n
o
te

d
th

a
t

th
e

fo
u
r

c
a
s
e
s

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

re
la

te
to

o
ff
ic

e
rs

g
iv

e
n

lo
w

le
v
e
l

a
c
c
e
s
s

ri
g
h
ts

a
n
d

th
e
re

fo
re

re
p
re

s
e

n
te

d
lit

tl
e

ri
s
k

to
th

e
in

te
g
ri
ty

o
f

th
e

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
le

d
g
e
r

in
te

g
ri
ty

o
f
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
d
a
ta

.

W
e

re
c
o
g
n

is
e

th
a
t

m
a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t

is
lo

o
k
in

g
to

im
p
le

m
e
n
t

a

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

is
e
d

p
ro

c
e
s
s

o
f

p
ro

v
id

in
g

n
e

w
u
s
e
r

a
c
c
e
s
s

o
n

F
M

S
a
n
d

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

th
is

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

p
u
t

in
to

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

a
s

s
o
o
n

a
s

p
o
s
s
ib

le

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
le

d
g
e
r.

R
e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r:

P
ri
n
c
ip

a
l

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
t,

C
o
rp

o
ra

te

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

D
u
e

d
a
te

:
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
1
2
.

2
P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
 s

e
rv

e
r 

ro
o

m
s

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l

a
c
c
e

s
s

to
s
e
rv

e
r

ro
o
m

s
s
h
o
u

ld
b
e

re
s
tr

ic
te

d
to

a

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
e
rs

o
n
n
e
l.

W
e

n
o
te

d
th

a
t

1
3
4

s
ta

ff
h
a
s

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
th

e
s
e
rv

e
r

ro
o
m

s
.

W
e

fu
rt

h
e
r

n
o
te

d
th

a
t

a
p
a
rt

fr
o
m

m
e
m

b
e
rs

o
f

th
e

IC
T

a
n
d

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

IC
T

a
re

c
o
n
d

u
c
ti
n
g

a
re

v
ie

w
o
f

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l

a
c
c
e
s
s

to

s
e
rv

e
r

ro
o
m

s
a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

p
la

n
n
e
d

w
o

rk
s

to
in

tr
o
d
u
c
e

n
e

w
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

ru
le

s
fo

r
th

e
D

a
ta

C
e

n
tr

e
s
.

T
h
is

w
ill

in
c
lu

d
e

re
s
tr

ic
ti
n
g

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

.
It

ill
l

i
l

d
l

(
t

ti
ll

l
t

i
i

th
d

p
y

te
a
m

,
th

e
re

w
e
re

s
ta

ff
fr

o
m

o
th

e
r

te
a
m

s
(e

.g
.

C
it
y

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
,

R
e
g
is

tr
a
rs

,
L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
,

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

L
e
e

d
s
,

L
e
g
a
l,

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
&

R
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
)

w
it
h

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
th

e
s
e
rv

e
r

ro
o
m

.

In
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
th

e
s
e
rv

e
r

ro
o
m

s
c
a
n

c
o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
th

e

a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
o
f

th
e

s
e
rv

e
r

w
h

ic
h

c
o

u
ld

im
p
a
c
t

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
.

w
ill

a
ls

o
in

c
lu

d
e

a
lo

g
(p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
v
ia

th
e

c
a
rd

k
e

y
s
y
s
te

m
)

o
f

w
h

o
h
a
s

a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d

th
e

ro
o

m
s

a
n
d

fo
r

w
h
a
t

p
u
rp

o
s
e
.

R
e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r:

S
u
p
p
o
rt

S
e
rv

ic
e

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,

IC
T

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

D
u
e

d
a
te

:
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
1
2
.

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
.

W
e

re
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
th

a
t

th
e

lis
t

o
f

p
e
rs

o
n

n
e
l

w
h
o

h
a
s

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
th

e

s
e
rv

e
r

ro
o
m

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

re
v
ie

w
e
d

a
n

d
th

e
a
c
c
e
s
s

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

re
s
tr

ic
te

d
to

th
o
s
e

p
e
rs

o
n
n
e
l
w

h
o

re
q
u
ir
e

a
c
c
e
s
s
.

D
u
e

d
a
te

:
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
1
2
.

2
0

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 31



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

F
o

ll
o

w
-u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

IT
)

N
o

R
is

k
Is

s
u

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

S
ta

tu
s
 a

s
 a

t 
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2

1
F

M
S

a
n

d
O

rc
h

a
rd

L
e
a
v
e
rs

'
A

c
c

e
s
s

R
e
v
o

c
a
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

le
te

W
h
e
n

s
ta

ff
le

a
v
e

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

,
th

e
ir

a
c
c
e

s
s

to
a
n
y

o
f

th
e

IT

s
y
s
te

m
s

s
h
o
u

ld
b
e

re
m

o
v
e
d

in
a

ti
m

e
ly

m
a
n
n
e
r

to
a
v
o
id

s
u
c
h

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

b
e

in
g

s
u
b
s
e
q
u

e
n
tl
y

u
s
e
d

b
y

u
n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e

d
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

to

v
ie

w
,

a
lt
e
r

o
r

d
e
le

te
b
u
s
in

e
s
s

c
ri
ti
c
a
l
d
a
ta

.

H
o

w
e
v
e
r,

w
e

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

3
0

a
c
ti
v
e

F
M

S
u
s
e
r

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

a
n
d

1
4

a
c
ti
v
e

O
rc

h
a
rd

u
s
e
r

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

a
s
s
ig

n
e
d

to
s
ta

ff
th

a
t

O
u
r

2
0
1
0
-1

1
fi
e
ld

w
o

rk
h
a
s

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d

th
a
t

th
is

is
s
u
e

h
a
s

n
o
w

b
e
e
n

re
m

e
d
ia

te
d
.

a
c
ti
v
e

O
rc

h
a
rd

u
s
e
r

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

a
s
s
ig

n
e
d

to
s
ta

ff
th

a
t

h
a
v
e

n
o

w
le

ft
th

e
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

.
T

h
e
s
e

a
c
c
o

u
n
ts

h
a
d

n
o
t

b
e
e
n

d
e
a
c
ti
v
a
te

d
in

lin
e

w
it
h

th
e

d
e
fi
n
e
d

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
.

W
h
e
re

s
u
c
h

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

a
re

le
ft

a
c
ti
v
e
,

th
e

ri
s
k

is
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
th

a
t

th
e

y
c
o
u

ld
b
e

u
s
e
d

in
c
o
rr

e
c
tl
y

a
n

d
th

is
c
o
u
ld

le
a
d

to
e
rr

o
rs

in

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
re

p
o
rt

in
g

o
r

in
c
o
rr

e
c
t

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

b
e
in

g

d
d

b
th

t
p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

b
y

th
e

s
y
s
te

m
s
.

W
e

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

th
a
t

m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t

s
h
o

u
ld

e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

th
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

le
a

v
e
rs

p
ro

c
e
s
s

is
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y

fo
llo

w
e

d
to

e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

a
ll

le
a
v
e
rs

'
a
c
c
e
s
s

to
th

e
s
y
s
te

m
s

is
re

v
o
k
e
d

in
a

ti
m

e
ly

m
a
n
n
e
r.

A
d
e
q
u

a
te

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

p
u
t

in
p
la

c
e

fo
r

th
e

n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

a
ll

le
a
v
e
rs

to
th

e
o
ff
ic

e
rs

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
fo

r
m

a
n
a
g

in
g

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
o
f

a
ll

le
a
v
e
rs

to
th

e
o
ff
ic

e
rs

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
fo

r
m

a
n
a
g

in
g

a
c
c
e
s
s

to

th
e

s
y
s
te

m
s

s
o

th
a
t
th

e
p
ro

c
e
s
s

c
a
n

b
e

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
.

2
1

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 32



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

F
o

ll
o

w
-u

p
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

IT
)

N
o

R
is

k
Is

s
u

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

S
ta

tu
s
 a

s
 a

t 
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2

2
A

c
a
d

e
m

y
a
n

d
O

rc
h

a
rd

U
s
e
r

A
c

c
e
s

s
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
P

a
rt

ia
ll

y
c
o

m
p

le
te

P
e
rm

is
s
io

n
s

g
ra

n
te

d
to

u
s
e
rs

,
to

a
c
c
e
s
s

a
n
d

c
h
a
n
g

e
d
a
ta

w
it
h

in

th
e

IT
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
,

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

p
e
ri
o
d

ic
a
lly

re
v
ie

w
e

d
to

e
n
s
u

re
th

a
t

th
e
y

a
re

s
ti
ll

v
a
lid

a
n
d

re
q
u
ir
e
d

fo
r

th
e
ir

jo
b

ro
le

s
.

T
h
e
re

a
re

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

n
o

fo
rm

a
l

p
e
ri
o

d
ic

re
v
ie

w
s

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d

to

v
a
lid

a
te

th
a
t

u
s
e
r

a
c
c
e
s
s

ri
g

h
ts

w
it
h
in

th
e

O
rc

h
a
rd

a
n

d
A

c
a
d

e
m

y

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s

a
re

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

A
ls

o
n
o

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
a
re

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d

to

W
e

fo
u
n
d

th
a
t

a
p
e
ri
o
d
ic

re
v
ie

w
o
f

u
s
e
r

a
c
c
e
s
s

ri
g
h
ts

w
a

s
n
o
t

b
e
in

g
p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d

fo
r

th
e

A
c
a
d
e
m

y

s
y
s
te

m
.

A
lt
h
o
u
g

h
a

p
e
ri

o
d
ic

re
v
ie

w
o
f

u
s
e
r

a
c
c
e
s
s

ri
g
h
ts

w
a

s
p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d

fo
r

th
e

O
rc

h
a
rd

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
,

n
o

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

w
a
s

re
ta

in
e
d

s
o

w
e

w
e
re

n
o
t

a
b

le
to

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s

a
re

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

.
A

ls
o
,

n
o

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
a
re

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d

to

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

u
n

u
s
e
d

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

to
d
e
te

rm
in

e
w

h
e
th

e
r

th
e

y
a
re

s
ti
ll

re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

W
h
e
re

p
e
ri

o
d
ic

a
c
c
e
s
s

re
v
ie

w
s

a
re

n
o
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d
,

th
e
re

is
a

ri
s
k

th
a
t

in
s
ta

n
c
e
s

o
f

in
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

o
r

u
n

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

a
c
c
e
s
s

ri
g

h
ts

fo
r

u
s
e
rs

o
n

th
e

s
y
s
te

m
s

a
re

n
o
t

id
e
n
ti
fi
e

d
a
n

d
re

s
o
lv

e
d
.

T
h
is

c
o

u
ld

l
d

t
b

i
b
l

t
k

h
t

d
t

h
i

h

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

w
a
s

re
ta

in
e
d

s
o

w
e

w
e
re

n
o
t

a
b

le
to

v
e
ri
fy

it
.

W
e

a
ls

o
fo

u
n

d
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s

in
re

s
p
e
c
t

o
f

th
e

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n

o
f

u
n
u
s
e
d

a
c
c
o

u
n
ts

to
d
e
te

rm
in

e

w
h
e
th

e
r

th
e

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

a
re

s
ti
ll

re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

A
re

v
ie

w
o
f

u
n

u
s
e
d

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

w
a

s
p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

in
le

a
d

to
u
s
e
rs

b
e
in

g
a

b
le

to
a
c
c
e
s
s

o
r

m
a
k
e

c
h
a
n
g

e
s

to
d
a
ta

w
h

ic
h

th
e
y

s
h
o
u
ld

n
o
t

b
a
s
e
d

o
n

th
e
ir

c
u
rr

e
n
t

jo
b

ro
le

s
.

W
e

re
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
th

a
t

p
e
ri
o
d

ic
re

v
ie

w
s

o
f

u
s
e
r

a
c
c
e
s
s

ri
g
h
ts

s
h
o
u

ld

b
e

in
s
ti
tu

te
d

fo
r

th
e

O
rc

h
a
rd

a
n
d

A
c
a
d

e
m

y
a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
,

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly

fo
r

u
s
e
rs

th
a
t

c
a
n

p
e
rf

o
rm

h
ig

h
ly

p
ri
v
ile

g
e
d

s
y
s
te

m
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s
.

T
h
e
s
e

s
h
o
u
ld

in
v
o
lv

e
th

e
re

le
v
a
n
t

a
u
th

o
ri
s
in

g
m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

v
e

ri
fy

in
g

p

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

2
0
1

2
fo

r
A

c
a
d
e

m
y
,

h
o

w
e

v
e
r

th
e
re

re
m

a
in

s
a

ri
s
k

th
a
t

in
a
c
ti
v
e

u
s
e
rs

w
e
re

o
n

th
e

s
y
s
te

m
b

e
tw

e
e
n

A
p
ri

l
2
0
1

1
a
n
d

J
a

n
u
a
ry

2
0
1
2
.

G
e
n
e
ra

lly
w

e
w

o
u
ld

e
x
p
e
c
t

s
u
c
h

re
v
ie

w
s

to
ta

k
e

p
la

c
e

o
n

a
q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

b
a
s
is

.

A
lt
h
o
u
g

h
th

e
re

is
a

re
v
ie

w
s
y
s
te

m
in

p
la

c
e

fo
r

th
a
t

th
e

lis
t

o
f

a
c
ti
v
e

u
s
e
rs

w
it
h
in

th
e
ir

te
a
m

s
a
n
d

th
e
ir

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
a
c
c
e
s
s

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
s

g
ra

n
te

d
a
re

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

.

In
a
d
d
it
io

n
,

th
e

s
y
s
te

m
a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
to

rs
s
h
o
u

ld
p
e
ri

o
d
ic

a
lly

re
v
ie

w

th
e

a
c
c
e
s
s

d
e

ta
ils

fo
r

u
s
e
rs

to
id

e
n
ti
fy

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

th
a
t

h
a

v
e

n
o

t

b
e
e
n

u
s
e
d

fo
r

lo
n
g

p
e
ri

o
d
s
.

S
u
c
h

a
c
c
o

u
n
ts

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a

te
d

a
n
d

d
e
a
c
ti
v
a
te

d
if

n
o

lo
n
g
e
r

re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

A
lt
h
o
u
g

h
th

e
re

is
a

re
v
ie

w
s
y
s
te

m
in

p
la

c
e

fo
r

O
rc

h
a
rd

,
3
7

in
a
c
ti
v
e

u
s
e
rs

w
e
re

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

d
u
ri
n
g

o
u
r

te
s
ti
n
g

a
n

d
s
u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y

d
e
a
c
ti
v
a
te

d
.

T
h
e
s
e

u
s
e
rs

o
u
g
h
t

to
h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

p
ic

k
e
d

u
p

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
re

v
ie

w

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

fr
o
m

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

to
b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d
.

2
2

©
 2

0
1

2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

is
 a

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 

a
 S

w
is

s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
is

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 c
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 
K

P
M

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 K

P
M

G
lo

g
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t

ra
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 

Page 33



©
2
0
1
2

K
P

M
G

L
L
P

a
U

K
lim

it
e
d

lia
b
ili

ty
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

is
a

s
u
b
s
id

ia
ry

o
f

K
P

M
G

©
 2

0
1
2
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e
d

 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
is

 a
 s

u
b
s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 

K
P

M
G

 

E
u
ro

p
e
 L

L
P

 a
n
d
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

fi
rm

 o
f 

th
e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h
 K

P
M

G
 I
n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

o
o
p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 (

K
P

M
G

 I
n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l)
, 

a
 

S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri
g
h
ts

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
d
.

T
h
e
 K

P
M

G
 n

a
m

e
, 

lo
g
o
 a

n
d
 ‘
c
u
tt
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
y
’ 
a
re

 r
e
g
is

te
re

d
 

tr
a
d
e
m

a
rk

s
 o

r 
tr

a
d
e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I
n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

o
o
p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 (

K
P

M
G

 

I
t

ti
l)

In
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l)
.

Page 34



 
 
Report of the Director of Resources 
 

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee    
 

Date: 4th July 2012 
 
Subject: The Statement of Accounts 2011/12 
 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

 
 
Summary of main issues 

1. The Responsible Financial Officer has certified that the 2011/12 accounts for Leeds 
City Council are a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position. The 
accounts are fully compliant with proper accounting practice as required by the 
Accounts & Audit regulations 2011.    

2. Overall the Council’s net worth has decreased by £474m, primarily due to the 
following factors: 

§ A £400m increase in net pension liabilities mainly due the poor performance of 
the stock market and the impact of the low bond rates on the discount factor 
applied to pension liabilities. 

§ A £124m (3.7%) reduction in the value of the Council’s property, plant and 
equipment as recognised on the balance sheet.  Mainly reflecting the transfer of 
school assets to Academies and Trusts. 

3. Whilst financial reporting under International Financial Reporting Standards 
provides an overview of all the factors impacting on the financial health of the 
Council, the amounts actually chargeable to a local authority’s council tax and its 
General Fund reserves are controlled by legislation. In respect of those 
transactions directly impacting on taxpayers in 2011/12 the Council under spent 
against the approved budget by £1.5m, resulting in a balance on the General Fund 
Reserve of £25.4m as at 31st March 2012. 

   

 

 
Originator: Doug Meeson 
Tel: 74250 

Agenda Item 9

Page 35



 2 

Recommendations 

4. Members are asked to: 

§ note the 2011/12 Statement of Accounts as certified by the Responsible 
Financial Officer. 

§ Agree to release the accounts for public inspection.   

1.0 Purpose of the Report  

1.1  The purpose of this report is to present to the Committee the 2011/12 Statement of 
Accounts for Leeds City Council prior to them being made available for public 
inspection. The Statement of Accounts is included with the agenda as a separate 
booklet for members of the Committee and is published on the Council’s intranet 
site. Anyone else wishing to obtain a copy of the Statement of Accounts should 
contact the committee clerk named on the front of the agenda.   

1.2 This report provides a summary analysis of the key financial issues in the 
accounts; an update on the future accounting issues impacting on the financial 
statements and an up date on compliance with External Audit recommendations 
from the audit of the 2010/11 accounts.  

2.0  Background Information   

2.1   In line with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, the 
Council’s annual accounts are certified by the responsible financial officer as a true 
and fair view of the Council’s financial position. Whilst it is no longer a legal 
requirement for members to formally approve these unaudited accounts before the 
30th June, members of this Committee requested that they receive the accounts 
prior to them being made available for public inspection.  

2.2 Subject to Committee’s approval, the Council’s accounts are to be made available 
for public inspection for 20 working days commencing 9th July 2012. The final 
audited accounts and the accompanying external audit report will be presented to  
Committee for final approval on the 28th September. 

3.0 Overall Financial Performance during 2011/12 

3.1 Financial Performance of the General Fund  

3.1.1  The overall reported outturn to Executive Board on the 20th June 2012, recognised 
an underspend of £1.5m against an approved budget of £582.2m. The 2011/12 
budget represented a major financial challenge for the Council, and the loss of 
Government Grant plus pressures on spending resulted in the Council needing to 
identify around £90m of savings. The budget included some difficult and 
challenging decisions and whilst not all planned savings have been fully achieved, 
other savings have been identified and additional income secured. Full details of 
the major variations to the budget are available in the provisional and final outturn 
reports made to Executive Board on the 16th May and 20th June 2012 respectively. 

3.1.2 This reported financial position is governed by statute and represents the amount 
chargeable to a local authority’s council tax and the General Fund reserve. The 
Council agreed to a budgeted usage of the General Fund reserve of £5.6m. This 
£1.5m underspend has reduced that required usage to £4.1m, leaving the 
Council’s General Fund Reserve at £25.4m as at the 31st March 2012. 

3.1.3 However the published statutory accounts as governed by International Financial 
Reporting standards takes a much broader view of our financial position and rather 
than just reflect our performance against the in year budget it also takes into 
consideration other factors impacting on the Council’s long term financial standing. 

Page 36



 3 

This is reflected in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CI&E 
a/c) which recognises both the £1.5m in year underspend and an assessment of 
any other longer term gains or losses impacting on the Council’s assets and 
liabilities. For 2011/12 the CI&E a/c shows a £474m reduction in the Council’s 
assets and liabilities (£122m reduction in 2010/11). The impact of this  reduction is 
reflected in the Council’s balance sheet which shows that the Council’s net worth 
(assets less liabilities) and has fallen from £755m to £281m.  

3.1.4 There are a number of reasons for this fall in net worth and the implications of 
these changes needs to be understood in order to help stakeholders interpret the 
Council’s financial position. An explanation of the main reasons for this £474m 
reduction, along with the implications, are as follows:  

i) A £400m increase in net pension liabilities resulting in a £1,141m shortfall of 
assets over liabilities in the Council’s pension funding. The main reasons for 
these increased deficit are: 

§ The growth in assets was less than predicted; 

§ A fall in the discount rate applied to the fund liabilities; 

A full explanation as to the reasons behind this deterioration in the pensions 
funding arrangements can be found at Appendix 1.  

Whilst recognising that this deterioration is an important indicator as to the 
estimated financial standing of the Council’s net pension liabilities. It needs to 
be recognised that these pensions liabilities will be paid out over a period of 
many years, during which time the assets will continue to generate returns 
towards funding them. Accounting standards require the accounts to recognise 
all measurable potential liabilities but not account for any potential growth in 
assets. As such, whilst not a worst case scenario, this accounting presentation 
of the pension deficit does represent a relatively pessimistic view of the fund. 
Consequently, in order to properly assess the impact of this financial position 
consideration needs to be given as to the extent to which the expected future 
returns on assets are sufficient to cover the estimated net liabilities. The Council 
receives such an assessment  from it’s actuaries in their review of the Pension 
Fund. The 2010 full actuarial review concluded that the Pension fund was 93% 
funded, which equates to a predicted deficit for the whole West Yorkshire 
Pension Fund of £590m Based on this triennial review, the Council has 
determined an appropriate level for employer contribution rates with which to 
move the fund towards a fully funded position over a 22 year recovery period. 
Actuaries consider a range of long term assumptions when determining the 
level to which the scheme is funded. Assumptions such as potential asset 
growth; mortality rates and discount rates are adjusted over a period of time as 
circumstances change but their affect is “smoothed” over the life of the pension 
liabilities. The accounts however are an indication of the fund at the 31st March 
each year and as such are subject to the particular circumstances prevalent at 
the time. For example stock market “bubbles” and crashes. 

It should be noted that this position excludes any potential impact of the recent 
Government pension proposals. 

ii) A £124m (3.7%) reduction in the value of the Council’s property, plant and 
equipment as recognised on the balance sheet. There are three main areas 
which impact on the carrying value of the Council fixed assets, deterioration in 
an asset (measured as a depreciation or impairment charge); revaluation of an 
asset and the sale / disposal of an asset. 

Page 37



 4 

In 2011/12, the amount the Council’s assets were deemed to have deteriorated 
through use was largely offset by an increase in asset valuations. The fall in the 
value of the Council’s fixed asset was therefore mainly due to £146m of school 
buildings and land transferred to Academies and Trusts. 

As a result of these changes the value of the Council’s property, plant and 
equipment now stands at £3,351m. Property, plant and equipment represent 
the main assets of the Council and are the main factor in generating the 
Council’s positive net worth. As with the pensions accounting above, it is 
important to note that accounting practice is very prescriptive. In the case of the 
Council’s asset base accounting practice requires assets to be valued based on 
their operational use or historic cost and as such does not reflect the true 
market value achievable if the Council’s assets were sold. So whilst we have 
seen a drop in the operational value of the Council’s long term assets, the 
overall market value of the Council’s assets is considerably higher. In particular 
it is worth noting that the market value of our Housing stock is around £4.4bn 
(current social value £1.4bn) and our infrastructure assets are currently only 
recognised at depreciated historic cost (£570m) when their market value would 
run into billions of pounds.              

iii) A £87m fall in the Council’s overall debt. As at 31st March 2012 the Council’s 
overall debt stood at £1,954m. Made up of £172m borrowing repayable on 
demand or within one year, £1,260m long term borrowing and £522m deferred 
liabilities (mainly credit arrangements under Private Finance Initiatives and 
finance leases). The main reason for this reduction in debt is that as part of the 
new Governments arrangements for ending the current housing subsidy 
regime, the Government has written off £112m of Housing debt. However this 
means that in the future the Housing Revenue Account will no longer receive 
housing subsidy and will be required to fund remaining debt from its own 
income.   

3.2 Financial Performance of Statutory Ring Fenced Accounts: 

3.2.1 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

3.2.1.1 The overall reported outturn to Executive Board on the 20th June 2012 
recognised, after movements to and from earmarked reserves, an underspend 
against the approved budget of £1.4m. Full details of the major variations to the 
budget are available in the provisional outturn report made to Executive Board on 
the 16th May.  

3.2.1.2 However, like with the Council’s Comprehensive Income and expenditure 
account, the HRA Income and Expenditure account (HRA I&E a/c) reflects a much 
broader view of the HRA’s financial position. The HRA I&E a/c shows a £58m 
contribution to the Council’ overall net worth. Other than the £1.4m underspend 
against the approved budget, the main reasons for this surplus are: 

§ The £112m repayment of long term debt under the governments arrangements 
for ending the current housing subsidy regime; 

§ A £67m fall in the value of Council Houses reflecting the current condition of 
the housing market.  

3.2.1.3 Overall the HRA reserves stand at £25.3m as at 31st March 2012 (£20.1m in 
2011). £5.9m of this sum represents the HRA general reserve; this is deemed to 
be a prudent level based on the Council’s risk based reserves strategy. Of the 
£19.4m earmarked HRA reserves, £12.5m is being held to fund the future costs of 
the Swarcliffe PFI scheme. Full details of the all the HRA reserves are shown in 
the Statement of Accounts.  

Page 38



 5 

3.2.2 Collection Fund 

3.2.2.1 The Collection Fund for 2011/12 generated a deficit of £0.1m (£0.8m deficit 
2010/11). This leaves the collection fund with negative reserves (£1.0m) as at 31st 
March 2012. There is no requirement to hold a balance on the Collection Fund 
reserve but any positive or negative balance must be taken into account when 
calculating the council tax for the following year.  

3.3 A Statement of Financial Resilience as at 31st March 2012 

3.3.1 Taking into account the explanation as to the changes in the Council’s net worth as 
explained in para 3.4 above, the following is a summary of the Council’s overall 
financial resilience: 

i) Whilst the net pensions deficit has risen to £1,141m it should be recognised that 
there is a regular independent process of review to ensure that the long term 
funding of the fund remains viable. Over the last few years there have been a 
number of significant increases and decreases to the pension deficit, many of 
which have reflected the particular short term state of the stock or bond 
markets. However it has been recognised that there are a number of long term 
factors such as mortality rates and long term predicted growth on investments 
which have significantly impacted on the ongoing cost of the fund. These have 
been partly offset by recent changes to the pension scheme and will be further 
affected by the proposed changes to the scheme benefits.  

The fund will continue to be closely monitored and appropriate actions taken 
based on each triennial actuarial review. Any such actions are fully incorporated 
into the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan.      

ii) The ration of the Council’s debt to long term fixed assets currently stands at 
56% (57% in 2010/11). The Council considers this as a sustainable level of debt 
and in proportion to its significant fixed asset base. The Council’s has an 
approved Treasury management policy (as agreed by the Executive Board on 
the 10th February 2012) which follows CIPFA’s Treasury Management Code of 
Practice and sets acceptable levels of borrowing, interest rate risk exposure 
and investment limits in order to minimise risk and ensure the Council’s debt 
finance costs are affordable.  

iii) Despite the significant pressures on Local Government Finances the Council 
has been able to underspend it’s in year budget by £1.5m. The Council 
maintains a financial risk register detailing the main risk and any potential 
consequences. The risk register considers any existing controls to mitigate 
against the risk, the value in monetary terms of the risk, review dates and 
progress towards managing the risk within existing resources. The register is 
prepared before the start of each financial year and is monitored on a regular 
basis. 

iv) The Council maintains a minimum level of general reserves, as determined by a 
risk based reserves strategy, with which to meet any short term financial issues. 
The current level of the General Reserve stands at £25.4m and in addition the 
Council also has a further £31.5m of non ring fenced earmarked reserves set 
aside to fund specific future costs.  

v) The Council’s accounts reflect any potential losses which are deemed 
sufficiently certain to be accrued. However there are a number of potential 
liabilities which cannot be estimated or are considered sufficiently uncertain 
which have therefore been excluded from the accounts. Such potential liabilities 
are disclosed as a note to the accounts so stakeholders can consider their 
potential impact if they became due.  

Page 39



 6 

3.4   Group 

3.4.1 Arms Length Management Organisations (ALMOs) 

3.4.1.1 Collectively the three ALMOs showed a combined provisional deficit of £17.3m for 
2011/12. Compared to a surplus of £37.8m in 2010/11. The final figures for each 
ALMO will be available for Committee along with the associated Group accounts. 

3.4.2 Other Group entities 

3.4.2.1 The definition of group entities changed in 2010/11, leading to an expansion in the 
number of entities now accounted for under the Council’s Group accounts. Along 
with the ALMOs, the following entities are now included and their results 
consolidated into the group accounts: 

Leeds Grand Theatre, Belle Isle Tenant Management Organisation,  Leeds 
groundwork trust, Marketing Leeds Ltd, Green Leeds Ltd, Craft Centre and 
Design Gallery Limited and all material bequests and trusts managed by the 
Council. 

In addition the Group Accounts also includes the residual company for Education 
Leeds which is in the process of being wound up. 

Of the above entities the only financial results which materially impact on the 
Council’s accounts are: 

§ £1.8m deficit in respect of Education Leeds reflecting the transfer of the 
companies reserves to the Council. The corresponding income was 
recognised in the Council’s Income & Expenditure Account and therefore 
has a neutral impact on the Council’s Group accounts. 

§ A £1.5m bequest made to the Leeds City Art Gallery to “purchase an 
object of beauty such as a period piece of solid silver”. 

3.4.3 Impact of the Group entities on the overall financial position 

3.4.3.1 Whilst it should be recognised that the Group entities do not represent a major 
part of the Council’s activities, the Group Accounts do show that they hold a 
significant level of reserves (£34m). The majority of these reserves are held by the 
ALMOs and are still provisional at this stage  

3.4.3.2 It should be noted that whilst the Group Accounts do show the full scale of the 
Council’s financial activities, those that are the most financially significant are in-
fact limited companies and as such the Council would only be required to 
contribute a nominal sum if any of them are wound up.  

4.0  Accounting Issues Impacting on the Financial Statements 

4.1 The only significant change to accounting practice for 2011/12 is a requirement for 
heritage assets to be valued and recognised on a separate line in the council’s 
balance sheet. Whilst the Council owns a large number of heritage assets only 
those deemed to have a significant value have been disclosed on the balance 
sheet. The Council also has a number of heritage assets which it uses in the 
provision of services. These assets therefore remain disclosed as operational 
assets. The requirement to account for heritage assets has increased the value of 
the Council’s balance sheet by £42m. 

5.0  External Audit Issues  

5.1  In September 2011, KPMG reported back to this Committee its main audit findings 
in respect of the 2010/11 accounts and any recommendations or risks for the 

Page 40



 7 

following years accounts. For 2011/12 KPMG identified no key risks or 
recommendations. 

5.2 As stated in paragraph 2.2 above, any relevant matters arising from the audit of 
the 2011/12 accounts are reported back to this Committee in September.  

6.0 Corporate Considerations 

6.1 Consultation and Engagement  

6.1.1 This is a factual report Director of Resources on the financial accounts of the Council 
for 2011/12 and consequently no public, Ward Member or Councillor consultation or 
engagement has been sought. 

6.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

6.2.1 This report does not highlight any issue regarding equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration. 

6.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

6.3.1 The Statement of Accounts is an audited publication which provides all stakeholders 
with the confidence that public money has been properly accounted for and that the 
financial standing of the Council is on a secure basis.  

6.3.2 As required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, the accounts are to be 
made available for public inspection for twenty working days. Local electors and 
taxpayers have the right to look through the accounts and supporting documentation. 
They also have the right to object to the accounts and question the auditors. 

6.4 Resources and Value for Money  

6.4.1 This is a factual report of the Director of Resources on the financial accounts of the 
Council for 2011/12. There are no additional financial or value for money 
implications.. 

6.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

6.5.1 The Accounts are required to be certified as a true and fair view of the Council’s 
financial position by the Responsible Financial Officer before the end of June. This 
report does not require a key decision and is therefore not subject to call-in. 

6.6 Risk Management 

6.6.1 The Council’s external auditors provide a risk assessment on the accounts process 
as part of their interim audit as reported to this Committee. Processes officers have 
put in place to mitigate these risks are included within the audit report.   

7.0 Conclusions 

7.1 The Council continues to face significant financial pressures due to the current 
economic climate. However through good governance and effective financial 
management the Council remains in a strong financial position. For 2011/12 the 
Council has achieved the challenging savings target whilst maintaining appropriate 
levels of reserves.. 

7.2 Whilst the Council’s net worth has fallen this is primarily down to the impact of the 
recession on the pension fund deficit and takes no account of future growth on 
pension assets nor the impact of the agreed proposals on changes to the scheme. 

Page 41



 8 

The pensions deficit is subject to regular reviews by external experts who advise the 
Council on the required actions to maintain the financial viability of the scheme over 
an appropriate 22 year recovery period. 

7.3 The Council’s debt is subject to strong governance arrangements based on CIPFA’s 
Treasury Management Code of Practice. Current debt levels remain sustainable and 
the related risks are subject to stringent controls as agreed within the Council’s 
Treasury Management Policy. The affordability of the Council’s debt is a key 
consideration in the Council’s medium term financial planning arrangements. 

8.0  Recommendations  

8.1  Members are asked to note the 2011/12 Statement of Accounts as certified by the 
responsible financial officer. 

8.2 Agree to release the accounts for public inspection.   

9.0 Background documents1  

2011/12 Statement of Accounts.  

KPMG ISA 260 Report 2010/11 

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011 

Executive Board report (20th June 2012): Financial Performance - Outturn Financial 
year ended 31st March 2012 

Executive Board report (16th May 2012): Provisional Outturn Financial year ended 
31st March 2012 

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee report: Treasury management 
Governance Framework (23rd January 2012) 

                                                
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 42



 9 

 

Appendix 1. 

Factors impacting on the Pension deficit in 2011/12 

For 2011/12 one of the most significant areas which has impacted on the Council’s balance 
sheet has been in respect of pension liabilities. As at the 31st March 2012 the net pensions 
liability under IAS 19 stood at £1,141m, an increase in the net liability of £400m from last 
year. The main factors which have contributed to this decrease are: 

§ The future pension liabilities held on the balance sheet are discounted back to current 
prices. Every year these pension liabilities become one year closer to being paid and 
the accounts therefore reflect the unravelling of one more year of this discount. 
Consequently the level of pension liabilities rises each year and for 2011/12 this 
increase amounted to £149m.  

§ For 2011/12 there have been a number of changes to the actuarial assumptions, one of 
the biggest of these has been the discount rate used to adjust future pension liabilities 
to current costs is based on the AA Corporate Bond rate. The volatility of the financial 
markets over the last few years has produced significant variations in this rate. The 
current financial markets have seen a fall in the bond rate (5.4% to 4.8%) so reducing 
the discount applied to future liabilities. This and other minor changes to assumptions 
has lead to a £220m increase in the expected liabilities of the fund.    

§ The value of the council’s pension fund assets has risen by only £36m mainly due to 
the poor performance of the stock markets over the last year. 

§ The Council now recognises the £31m net pension liabilities transferred from Education 
Leeds.  

The main differences between the pensions deficit as calculated in the accounts and 
that calculated in the actuarial review. 

Under the accounting standard  (IAS 19) the Council must determine the future cost of the 
pension liability earned to date by it’s employees. In order to do this, the Council’s 
actuaries estimate the how long they expect the officers in the scheme are expected to live 
and their anticipated rise in salary (pay awards, increments etc.). The level of future 
pensions is then inflated (now based on CPI) to calculate the likely future liabilities the 
Council faces under the scheme. This is broadly the same approach as followed in the 
actuarial review. The only real  difference will be slight changes to some of the 
assumptions used due to the timing of the assessments. 

In order to include this projected future pensions liability in the accounts it needs to be 
discounted back to current prices. The discount rate used is determined by the accounting 
standard. This is currently the yield on corporate and government bonds as at the reporting 
year end. In theory this discount rate is expected to be stable over the long term and 
represents the time value of money. Due to the exceptional economic situation over the 
last few years there has been some fluctuations in this discount rate but it is expected to be 
relatively stable over the long term. The actuarial review also discounts future pension 
liabilities but for this calculation the actuaries are not restricted to the yield on bond rates 
but instead choose a rate which they believe is more applicable for bodies in the West 
Yorkshire Pension Scheme. They therefore apply a higher discount rate based on 
expected returns on the pension fund’s assets and the long term financial standing of the 
Councils in the scheme. Accordingly, the actuarial review produces a lower level of future 
pension liabilities (at current prices) than that used in the accounts. 

Page 43



 10

 

In respect of the fund’s assets to pay for these liabilities, accounting practice only allows 
the Council’s accounts to include them at their current value. Any expected future growth in 
these assets remains uncertain and the prudent approach in accounting practice is that 
organisations can only included gains on investments when the gains are certain. 
Consequently the accounts are always likely to show the pension fund in deficit as the 
viability of a scheme will always depend on asset growth. In comparison the actuarial 
review assesses the long term viability of the fund and therefore assumes that the assets 
will grow in order to meet future liabilities. Consequently the value of the fund’s assets in 
the actuarial review are much greater than those in the accounts. It is therefore the 
actuarial review which helps determine the employer contribution rates required to meet 
any projected deficit.                

Page 44



 

 

Report of Chief Officer – Human Resources 

Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 

Date: 4 July 2012 

Subject: Role of the People Plan in Corporate Governance 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes    No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes    No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes    No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes    No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. Reporting is in place to ensure that all 12,600 full time equivalent employees have 
annual appraisals, six-monthly reviews and personal development plans, which 
develops their capacity and capability. 

2. Engagement is measured quarterly for overall staff engagement levels, the extent to 
which the Council delivers what employees need to feel engaged and engagement 
survey response rates. 

3. The size and cost of the Council’s workforce is measured monthly by reporting on staff 
and agency expenditure. 

4. The People Plan is used to provide accountability, ensure adequate scrutiny and 
measure performance in the above key areas by reporting to the Leader of the Council, 
Executive Members, Corporate Leadership Team, Corporate and Central Services 
Scrutiny, Corporate Joint Consultative Committee and Directorate Leadership Teams 
on a monthly and quarterly basis. 

Recommendations 

1. To note the existing monitoring, reporting and scrutiny arrangements for appraisal 
processes, employee engagement, workforce planning and control of the Council’s 
workforce budget. 

 Report author:  Alex Nicholls 

Tel:  0113 39 52287 

Agenda Item 10

Page 45



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 To provide a report outlining the role of the Council’s People Plan and how it 
aligns with the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance in respect of: the 
appraisal process; employee engagement, workforce planning and control of the 
Council’s budget. 

2 Background information 

2.1 The People Plan sets out the Council’s priorities for all 12,600 full time equivalent 
employees and is a plan for the organisation, not just the HR Service. The People 
Plan was launched during 2011 and performance measures for the five themes of 
the People Plan (Flexible, Healthy, Enabled, Engaged and Performing) have been 
reported monthly at Council-wide, directorate and service levels using 
performance scorecards since November 2011.  

2.2 Scorecards are produced on 20th of each month and they go to the Leader of the 
Council, Executive Members, Corporate Leadership Team, Corporate and Central 
Services Scrutiny, Corporate Joint Consultative Committee and Directorate 
Leadership Teams.  

2.3 The People Plan and scorecards have been updated for 2012/13 to update the 
targets, incorporate amended Council priorities and to be fully aligned with 
Outcome-Based Accountability. The revised People Plan is attached as Appendix 
1 to this report and the revised scorecard has been included as Appendix 2. 

3 Main issues 

3.1 The Council’s target is for all employees to have an annual appraisal and the 
People Plan supports this by monitoring the percentage of completed appraisals 
down to Chief Officer level, and to Service level where appropriate. The People 
Plan also measures the percentage of six-monthly reviews completed and if each 
employee has a personal development plan (linked to the Council’s purpose), 
which is an indication of a good quality appraisal.  

3.2 The Performance and Learning System has been developed and rolled out to 
facilitate the recording and implementation of all three appraisal-related 
measures. This will help the Council achieve its targets of ‘quality appraisals’ for 
all employees it and developing the capacity and capability of officers to be 
effective whilst ensuring that officers play their part in making the Council the best 
City Council in the UK. 

3.3 One of the five People Plan themes is dedicated to staff engagement to ensure 
that everybody is respected, involved, heard, well led and valued. Staff 
engagement has been embedded as a key management accountability and it is 
measured quarterly. A key People Plan target is to increase the percentage of 
staff who feel engaged, which aligns with the sixth Code of Corporate Governance 
principle of engagement, albeit internally. 

3.4 Staff engagement is now measured quarterly, instead of biennially, by sampling a 
proportion of employees. The People Plan also measures the extent to which the 

Page 46



 

 

Council delivers what employees need to feel engaged and engagement survey 
response rates. Quarterly reporting performance in these areas ensures that 
services are constantly aware of, and able to react to, staff engagement levels. 

3.5 The primary outcome of the ‘Flexible’ theme in the People Plan is that the Council 
has the right people with the right skills in the right place at the right time. This 
involves effective workforce planning linked to Council and directorate priorities 
whilst managing a reduction in the headcount as outlined in the Council’s 
Business Plan and budget. 

3.6 This is measured within the People Plan by monthly and quarterly monitoring of 
staffing budget expenditure, the number of full time equivalent (FTE) employees 
and the use of agency workers in terms of FTE and cost. All these measures are 
included in monthly performance scorecards. 

3.7 People Plan progress, including appraisal, staff engagement and workforce 
planning, is reported to key decision-making bodies either monthly or quarterly. 
This includes the Leader of the Council, Executive Members, Corporate 
Leadership Team, Corporate and Central Services Scrutiny, Corporate Joint 
Consultative Committee and Directorate Leadership Teams. The scorecards are 
produced within 20 days of the end of each month and quarter to provide 
information that is accurate and up to date. 

3.8 This regular and timely performance reporting demonstrates adherence to the 
Code of Corporate Governance principles of accountability and effective scrutiny. 
It also means that the Council’s leaders are constantly updated on progress in 
these three critical areas throughout the life of the People Plan. This allows the 
Council’s leaders to take prompt action if any areas of concern are highlighted 
through the People Plan reporting mechanism. For instance, the Corporate 
Leadership Team recently asked for a further in-depth report on the use of agency 
workers based upon information contained in the performance scorecards. 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 All the key stakeholders referred to in 3.7 were consulted in the development of 
the People Plan and the scorecards. Consultation has also taken place with 
employee groups, Equality Team, Performance Teams, Financial Management, 
Business Support Centre and Human Resources. The scorecards are published 
monthly and communicated widely as shown in 3.7. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 The People Plan aims to increase the diversity of the workforce and make it 
representative of the City of Leeds by monitoring the percentage of women, 
people with disabilities and people from black and minority ethnic groups at senior 
levels. 

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

Page 47



 

 

4.3.1 The Council’s Business Plan sets out the Council’s ambition to be ‘the best City 
Council in the UK’. The vision for the HR Service is to enable the Council to 
achieve its ambition through its people. The People Plan sets out the Council’s 
priorities for its people across the five themes. Underpinning the People Plan are 
the Council values, our commitment to joint working with trade unions and our 
commitment to partnership working with the public, private and voluntary sectors. 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 The People Plan and scorecards are monitoring and reporting tools to help the 
Council leaders and services to monitor the use of their resources. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 Not applicable. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 Separate corporate and directorate risks are already established for appropriate 
areas covered by the People Plan. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 The People Plan and performance scorecards provide a robust tool for monitoring 
and reporting on the key areas of appraisal processes, employee engagement, 
workforce planning and control of the Council’s budget. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 To note the existing monitoring and reporting arrangements for appraisal 
processes, employee engagement, workforce planning and control of the 
Council’s workforce budget. 

7 Background documents1  

7.1 People Plan 2012-15 and Performance scorecard. 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 48



L
ee

d
s 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
P

eo
p

le
 P

la
n

 2
0

12
-1

5

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 a
m

b
it
io

n
 ‘

to
 b

e
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

K
.’
 T

h
e
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 H

R
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 t

o
 ‘

e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
 i

ts
 a

m
b

it
io

n
 

th
r
o

u
g

h
 i
ts

 p
e
o

p
le

.’
C

o
u

n
c
il

 v
a
lu

e
s
, 
o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

 T
r
a
d

e
 U

n
io

n
s

p
a
r
tn

e
r
s
h

ip
 w

o
r
k
in

g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
li
c
, 

p
ri
v
a
te

 a

BBB
e

n
g

 o
p

en
, 

o
n

es
t

B
ei

n
g

 o
p

en
, h

o
n

es
t

B
ei

n
g

 o
p

en
, h

o
n

es
t

a
n

d
 t

ru
st

ed
a

n
d

 t
ru

st
ed

W
o

rk
in

g
 a

s 
a

 
W

o
rk

in
g

 a
s 

a
 

te
a

m
 f

o
r 

L
ee

d
s

te
a

m
 f

o
r 

L
ee

d
s

T
re

a
ti

n
g

 p
eo

p
le

T
re

a
ti

n
g

 p
eo

p
le

fa
ir

ly
fa

ir
ly

W
o

rk
in

 w
it

h
W

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
W

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
S

p
en

d
in

 m
o

n
ey

w
is

el
y

SSS
p

en
n

g
 m

o
n

ey
S

p
en

d
in

g
 m

o
n

ey
S

p
en

d
in

g
 m

o
n

ey
w

is
el

y
w

is
el

y
w

is
el

y

E
n

a
b

le
d

E
n

g
a

g
ed

P
er

fo
rm

in
g

F
le

x
ib

le
o

u
r 

p
eo

p
le

 t
o

 b
e…

g
g

w
e’

ll
 m

ea
su

re
...

H
er

e’
s 

ou
r

h
ea

d
li

n
e 

ta
rg

et
s.

..

O
.

P
e

o
p

le
 P

la
n

 
P

eo
p

le
 P

la
n

 
P

eo
p

le
 P

la
n

th
em

es
 - 

w
e 

w
a

n
t 

th
em

es
 - 

w
e 

w
a

n
t 

o
u

r 
p

eo
p

le
 t

o
 b

e…
o

u
r 

p
eo

p
le

 t
o

 b
e…

F
le

x
ib

le
F

le
x

ib
le

H
ea

lt
h

y
H

ea
lt

h
y

E
n

a
b

le
d

E
n

a
b

le
d

E
n

g
a

g
ed

E
n

g
a

g
ed

P
er

fo
rm

in
g

P
er

fo
rm

in
g

O
u

tc
o

m
e.

..
O

u
tc

o
m

e.
..

S
u

cc
es

se
s 

fr
o

m
 

S
u

cc
es

se
s 

fr
o

m
20

11
/1

2 
to

 b
u

il
d

 o
n

...
20

11
/1

2 
to

b
u

il
d

o
n

...

H
er

e’
s 

ou
r

H
er

e’
s 

ou
r

h
ea

d
li

n
e 

ta
rg

et
s.

..
h

ea
d

li
n

e 
ta

rg
et

s.
..

H
er

e’
s 

w
h

at
H

er
e’

s 
w

h
at

w
e’

ll
 m

ea
su

re
...

w
e’

ll
 m

ea
su

re
...

H
er

e’
s 

w
h

at
 w

e’
re

H
er

e’
s 

w
h

at
 w

e’
re

gg
o

in
g

 t
o

 d
o

...
g

o
in

g
 t

o
 d

o
...

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Council Wide Scorecard
Appendix 2

People Plan 

theme
Measure Jan Feb Mar April

2012/13

Target
11/12 outturn

# Full time equivalent (FTE) n/a 12617.22

£000s Staffing budget variation
0 £530,000

Agency FTE (average)
n/a 536

Agency Spend (total) n/a £16.15million

# staff in Talent Pool n/a 130 

Average length of time in Talent Pool 6 months 7.5

% Black Minority Ethnic employees at 

Joint Negotiating Council (JNC)
tbc 9%

% disabled employees at JNC tbc 4%

% female employees at JNC tbc 42%

# projected absence per FTE 8.5 9.29

# employee accidents / incidents per 

1000 employees

3%

reduction
174

# employee incidents reportable under 

RIDDOR[1] to Health and Safety 

Executive

3%

reduction
197

% of workforce development budget 

spent/committed
100% 75%

How well employees recognise the 

values in their colleagues work
10 7.3

The extent to which the Council delivers 

what employees need to feel engaged
73% 71%

Engagement survey response rate 100% 39%

% of performance appraisals completed 100% 92%

% of 6 month reviews completed 100% 80%

# new grievances n/a 97

# new disciplinaries n/a 148

# new improving performance cases n/a 10

[1] RIDDOR - Reportable Injuries, Diseases, Dangerous Occurrences Regulations

Key points HRBPs to highlight key issues from scorecard to be raised within Directorate at appropriate level

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1

Report of Chief Statutory Housing Services Officer 

Report to: Corporate and Governance Committee 

Date: 4 July 2012 

Subject: Council Housing Assurance Framework 2011-12 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion 
and integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. Housing Services has commissioned an audit programme from Internal Audit, known 
as the Assurance Framework since 2010/11.  The development of the Assurance 
Framework arose from an audit undertaken on the Housing Services monitoring 
arrangements of the ALMOs and BITMO in 2008.  The Assurance Framework sets out 
the key objectives for the council in its delegation of housing management functions to 
the ALMOs and BITMO through governance, asset management, lettings and tenancy 
enforcement, customer satisfaction, partnerships and service improvement plans.  .  
The Assurance framework is a partnership audit programme that is developed in 
collaboration with the ALMOs and BITMO.  The audits are selected based on an 
assessment of services listed in the ALMO/ BITMO and Housing Services risk plans as 
well as corporate priorities, areas of poor performance, and where limited audits have 
been previously received. 

2. In addition to the Assurance Framework, ALMOs commission their own audits from 
Internal Audit where they are not covered in the Assurance Framework, or for 
consultancy purposes.  The audit opinions are listed in this report for 2011/12.   

3. The Council, though its performance management framework, can provide assurance 
that the ALMOs and BITMO are appropriately managing the risks derived from 
delegating the housing management functions to them.  The Audit reports demonstrate 
that for the services inspected, assurance is generally of an acceptable or good 
standard.   

 Report author:  Simeon Perry 

Tel:  x50503 

Agenda Item 11

Page 53



 

 2

Recommendations 

4. That Corporate Audit and Governance Committee receive assurance that the 
management of council housing in the city is being appropriately monitored by the 
Housing Partnerships team based within Housing Services. 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report provides the assurance through informing Corporate Governance and 
Audit Committee of the: 

1.1.1 outturn of the Assurance Framework for Council housing management in 2011/12, 
and the ALMO commissioned audits.   

1.1.2 The planned audit areas for 2012/13 commissioned through the Assurance 
Framework, and by ALMOs. 

2 Background information 

2.1 In September 2010, Corporate Governance and Audit Committee requested 
annual assurance that the delegated housing management services to the 
ALMOs and BITMO are appropriately managed.  This has been undertaken 
annually to date, with reports to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee. 

2.2 The Council’s relationship with the three Arms Length Management Organisations 
(ALMOs) and Belle Isle Management Organisation (BITMO) is one of partnership 
in the delivery of excellent housing management services for tenants of the 
council.   

2.3 The spirit of the Framework is co-regulation.  The Framework provides assurance 
that the ALMOs and BITMO have mitigated the risk areas through their own policy 
and procedures.  These will be objectively assessed by Internal Audit resulting in 
the development of the annual Assurance Framework audit programme. 

2.4 All audits are reported to each ALMO/ BITMO Board through its Audit Committee.  
These audit committees monitor the implementation of the recommendations.  
Furthermore, ALMOs/ BITMO will provide the audits to customers as evidence of 
improvement in service delivery.  This is ushally in the form of newsletter articles. 

2.5 The greater the level of assurance that the ALMOs and BITMO provide through 
the annual assurance report, the smaller the audit plan for the subsequent year.  
In 2010/11 many audits were undertaken to ascertain an assurance baseline 
based on areas of risk to the council through the delegation of housing 
management services.  

2.6 The Audit protocol is that all audits that receive a Limited Assurance have an audit 
undertaken at least 6 months after the issue of the previous report.   

3 Main issues 

3.1 Housing Partnerships team commissioned Internal Audit to undertake audits to 
provide objective assurance.  Internal Audit undertook audits in 9 services and 

Page 54



 

 3

one follow up audit.  This included 21 Audits in ALMOs/ BITMO and 3 in Housing 
Services.   In addition, the ALMOs/ BITMO commissioned 15 audits themselves. 

3.2 In 2011/12 a reduced number of audits were undertaken focussing on the areas of 
high risk, as determined by the ALMO/ TMO and Environment and 
Neighbourhoods’ risk management plans.  Furthermore, in order to maximise 
resources, reduce duplication and deliver value for money it was decided that in 
some areas an audit would be undertaken in one ALMO only.  Once approved by 
that ALMO’s Audit committee, the report and recommendations would be shared 
with the other ALMOs/ TMO, who would then adopt the recommendations 
relevant to them.  This process was undertaken for 4 Audits listed in table 1.  Due 
to the timing of the audits published in 2011/12, and the dates of the Audit 
committees, these audits will be shared with the other ALMOs in Q1 and Q2 in 
2012/13. 

3.3 Audits undertaken on the ALMOs/ BITMO commissioned through the Assurance 
Framework 

3.4 Appendix 1 provides the opinions on these audits 

3.5 The audits were on:   

3.5.3 Corporate Governance – an audit of the corporate governance arrangements in 
each ALMO/ BITMO. 

3.5.4 Procurement - a review by Internal Audit on the ALMO self assessment for each 
ALMO/ TMO. 

3.5.5 Fire safety - an audit undertaken for each ALMO/ TMO, looking at both the 
controls and compliance that exist. 

3.5.6 Lettings Enforcement and Date if Registration Quota:  An audit undertaken on 
compliance of the new aspects of the recent Lettings policy change to enable 
lettings based on date of registration. 

3.5.7 Tenancy Enforcement (Tenancy fraud) – an audit on how West North West 
homes prevented fraud in council tenancies.  This was one of the shared Audits.  
The recommendations of this audit will be shared with the other ALMOs/ TMO for 
them to implement. 

3.5.8 Neighbourhood management – an audit in Aire Valley homes to assess the 
effectiveness of services to estates.   This was one of the shared Audits.  The 
recommendations of this audit will be shared with the other ALMOs/ TMO for them 
to implement. 

3.5.9 Key Policies: Business Continuity – an audit of Belle Isle TMO to assess its 
preparation for business continuity.  This was one of the shared Audits.  The 
recommendations of this audit will be shared with the other ALMOs/ TMO for them 
to implement. 

Page 55



 

 4

3.5.10 Scheme of Delegation – an audit on the Scheme in East North East homes.  This 
was one of the shared Audits.  The recommendations of this audit will be shared 
with the other ALMOs/ TMO for them to implement. 

3.5.11 Gas Servicing:  This was a follow up audit on East North East Homes as they 
received Limited Assurance in 2010/11. 

3.5.12 It was envisaged that number of financial audits would be undertaken.  However, 
as the ALMO finance teams were restructured as part of the ALMO Business 
Centre Leeds development, it was decided between Partnerships team, the 
ALMOs and Internal Audit to defer these audits to 2012/3. 

3.5.13 The shared audits were: 

Table 1  Shared Audits 

Audit Service area Lead ALMO where Audit undertaken 

Key Policies: Scheme of delegation East North East homes 

Key Policies:  Business continuity  Belle Isle TMO 

Tenancy Enforcement (Housing Fraud) West North West homes 

Neighbourhood management Aire Valley homes 

3.6 Audits undertaken on Housing Services: 

3.6.1 Prevention of tenancy fraud – an audit on compliance with  the council policy to 
prevent  fraud in council tenancies. 

3.6.2 Lettings – an audit on the policy controls 

3.6.3 Lettings - an audit on the compliance of the application process for customers. 

3.6.4 Strategic Landlord Central controls – 2010/11.  This audit was a backwards 
looking audit on how Housing Services monitored the ALMOs through its 
Performance Management Agreement for 2010/11.  The audit has yet to be 
finalised. 

3.7 Audits undertaken by Housing Services 

3.7.5 Housing Services commissioned Leeds Tenants Federation (LTF) to undertake an 
audit on the development in the city of Tenant Scrutiny.  In 2010/11, the then 
Tenants Services Authority set out new Housing Management Standards for  
Local Authorities.  Government policy was to reduce national regulation, and 
enable customer regulations.  As a result, local authorities and their ALMOs were 

Page 56



 

 5

expected to develop structures to enable tenants formally to challenge the 
services offered so they could drive service improvements.  The conclusions for 
the LTF inquiry were that  the 3 ALMOs have created Tenant Scrutiny panels and 
the early enquiries are beginning to see service changes.  However, a number of 
recommendations have been made, such as improved tenant training and greater 
learning from each other. BITMO will consider developing a Tenants Scrutiny 
panel in 2012/13. 

3.8 Overall the majority of audits received a good or acceptable opinion.  The 
Opinions are stated in Appendix 1.  The recommendations from the audits are 
being monitored by each ALMO/ BITMO Audit Committee.   Furthermore, Housing 
Services receive the reports for these committees and both officers form Internal 
Audit and Housing Services attend the Audit Committees when invited.   

3.9 ALMO commissioned Audits 

3.9.1 In addition to the Assurance Framework, the ALMO commission their own audits.  
These audits are commissioned from Internal Audit if that particular ALMO 
considers that it requires additional audit coverage to the audits and / or audit 
consultancy available through the Housing Services commissioned audits.  Most 
ALMOs have a 3 year audit programme, which is reviewed annually.  The ALMO 
commissioned audits and their opinions are listed in table 2. 

Table 2:  ALMO commissioned audits 2011/ 12 
 

 Opinion 

 Control 
Assurance 

Compliance 
Assurance 

East North East   

Construction Services - 
Subcontractors 
 

Acceptable Limited 

Health & Safety 

 
Acceptable Acceptable 

Responsive Repairs Gainshare 
Calculation Mears 

 

Consultancy review  - advice given 

Construction Services - Process 
Review 

 

Good Acceptable 

Construction Services - Managed 
Stores 

 

Good Acceptable 

Construction Services – Sub 
contractor Work Allocation process 

Consultancy review-  advice given 

VFM Efficiencies - Annual Efficiency 
Statement 

Good Good 

Page 57



 

 6

 

Aire Valley  

Social Housing Equality Framework 
(SHEF) 

This was a consultancy audit but the 
opinion was that AV will obtain the status 
of ‘achieving’ the SHEF quality mark. 

West North West   

Planned Capital Good Limited 

WNW Gas contractor No assurance Limited  

BITMO   

Responsive day to day repairs – 
Blackie Ltd (April to October) 

Good  Good  

Responsive day to day repairs 
contractor – (October to December) 

Good  Too early to 
consider 

Bank Reconciliation and Treasury 
Management 

Substantial  Substantial  

Budgetary Control and Performance 
Substantial  Substantial  

Payroll and Personnel 
Substantial  Substantial  

Proposed Audit Programme for 2012/13 

3.10 The Council and the ALMOs have agreed the Assurance Framework audit 
programme for 2012/13.  All ALMOs were consulted at the Strategic Governance 
Board in March 2012, and it was approved by the Director of Environments and 
Neighbourhoods Decision Panel in April 2012.  

3.11 The proposed audits are stated in Table 3 and 4: 

 
Table 3 – Assurance Framework Audits to be completed by Internal Audit 
 

Area Scope of Audit 

Contract 
Management 
Arrangements 

To review the overarching processes around contract 
management and procurement.  To review the contract 
management arrangements in place within the ALMOs for 
major contracts, such as Responsive Repairs and Gas 
Servicing. 

Self Assessment 
Support 

To provide support in the development of the self 
assessments by the ALMOs/ BITMO. 

Fraud Prevention and 
Detection 

To review the strategies in place at the ALMOs/BITMO to 
reduce the risk of tenancy fraud.  This will be done with a self 
assessment to be completed by the organisation, and for 
Internal Audit to undertake validation testing as appropriate. 

Page 58



 

 7

 

 

 
Table 3 – Assurance Framework Self Assessments to be completed by ALMO / 
BITMO 
 

Area Scope of Self Assessment 

Repairs Health and 
Safety Audit 

To provide assurance that effective health and safety 
provisions are in place. 

Lettings To provide assurance that the lettings policy is adhered to. 

Sheltered Housing To provide assurance that the sheltered housing service is of 
high quality. 

  

  

Self Assessment 
Implementation 

 

 

To review the process in place within the Strategic Landlord 
with regard to the self assessments completed by the 
ALMOs/ BITMO.  This will provide assurance that the self 
assessment process is working as intended. 

Corporate 
Governance 
Arrangements 

To review key risk areas within Corporate Governance to be 
determined by the ALMOs / BITMO and Strategic Landlord 
based on a risk assessment of individual corporate 
Governance Areas.  It is intended that for 2012/13 this will 
include Information Governance. 

ABCL  

• Bank 
Reconciliation & 
Treasury 
Management 

A review of Treasury Management arrangements and the 
processes in place for carrying out the bank reconciliations. 

• Creditors A review of the processes in place for raising orders, 
receipting goods, authorising invoices and producing and 
monitoring management information 

• Budgetary Control A review of the processes in place for setting the budget and 
carrying out budget monitoring throughout the year. 

• Payroll A review of the processes in place for new starters, leavers, 
variations to pay, reconciling the payroll system to the 
general ledger and producing and monitoring management 
information. 

Page 59



 

 8

Area Scope of Self Assessment 

Environmental 
Management 

To provide assurance of effective environmental 
management. 

3.12 For ALMO commissioned audits Housing Services and the ALMOs have agreed 
that, to avoid duplication, the Assurance Framework audit programme would be 
initially agreed, and then each ALMO would procure its own audit programme to 
complement the Assurance Framework audits.   

3.13 ALMOs/ BITMO have not yet finalised their own commissioned audit plan for 
2012/13.  These will be finalised in preparation for the first ALMO Audit 
committees of 2012/13, to be held in late June/ early July.   

Table 5 ALMO commissioned Audits 2012/13 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.6 The Assurance Framework provides the council with assurance that the key risks 
to the council through delegating housing services are managed, but also 
assurance to ALMO boards and council tenants that their housing management 
services are being adequately managed.  

4.1.7 As a result each ALMO/ TMO reports the outcome of audits undertaken on its 
servcies to its Audit committee or Board.  Furthermore, these committees then 
monitor the ALMO / TMO to ensure that the recommendations are adequately 
implemented.   

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 The audits commissioned through the Assurance framework or by individual 
ALMOs provide assurance that the Housing Services ensures that due regard to 
equality is provided through its service provision.  An Equality Impact Assessment 
has been undertaken for the approval of the commissioning of the Assurance 
Framework, and by each ALMO when commissioning their audit programs.   

4.2.2 Equality and diversity matters are considered where appropriate in the controls 
and compliance of all audits.  A specific example of an audit that has focussed on 
equality and diversity is the Aire Valley audit on the delivery of the Social housing 
Framework, a national social housing quality assessment on equality and 
diversity, which resulted in an audit opinion that Aire Valley are expected to 
achieve this standard. 

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 The audit framework meets the councils priorities to ensure that Leeds is the best 
city in the UK through ensuring that money is spent ‘wisely’. 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

Page 60



 

 9

4.4.1 There is sufficient budget allocation made available for the Assurance Framework 
in 2012/13 and for the ALMO/ BITMO commissioned Audits. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 There is not a legal requirement to commission audits, however the 
commissioning of Audits is good practice to provide assurance that money is 
appropriately spent and that governance matters and processes are effective.  

4.5.2 This report does not have any Access to Information implications.   

4.5.3 Call in is not applicable to this report as this report is not a key decision. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 One of the main drivers to have an audit programme is to mitigate any risks using 
a process that investigates particular service areas in depth.  This is undertaken 
by a trained team of specialist auditors.  There is considerable evidence that the 
audits undertaken in 2011/12 have mitigated a number of risks. 

4.6.2 The development of the 2012/13 Assurance Framework programme has been 
derived from: 

• an assessment of the ALMO and Environments and Neighbourhoods directorate risk 
management plans,  

• services that have had a previous limited audit opinion, or where key weaknesses have 
been identified .   

• Services where there has been a recent configuration of the service, or it is a new 
service which is important to the customer delivery.   

• Services where it is known that performance is poor. 

• Services that are key corporate prioritise for the authority. 

4.6.3 From these drivers, both the Assurance Framework and the ALMO commissioned 
audits are then selected and briefs then developed in consultation with all 
stakeholders. 

5 Conclusions 

5.7 The Council, though its performance management framework, can provide 
assurance that the ALMOs and BITMO are appropriately managing the risks 
derived from delegating the housing management functions to them.   

5.1 The audits and reviews undertaken in 2010/11 provide the Council with assurance 
against the risks of delegating housing management to the ALMOs and BITMO. 

5.2 The Audit reports demonstrate that for the services inspected, assurance is 
generally of an acceptable or good standard.  Where Limited assurance has been 
found, then follow up audits have been undertaken.   

Page 61



 

 10

5.3 All audit reports are reviewed by the Audit committees of each ALMO Board which 
meet quarterly.  They review implementation of each recommendation made, 
focussing on the high risk recommendations.   

6 Recommendations 

6.1 That Corporate Audit and Governance Committee receive assurance that the 
management of council housing in the city is being appropriately monitored by the 
Housing Partnerships team based within Housing Services. 

7 Background documents1  

7.1 Council Housing Assurance Framework, Corporate Governance and Audit 
Committee, 18 July 2011. 

7.2 Council Assurance Framework for ALMOs/ BITMO , Corporate Governance and 
Audit Committee 29 September 2010. 

7.3 The development of performance indicators and targets, assurance framework 
audits and satisfaction surveys for the Leeds ALMOs and BITMO, Environment 
and Neighbourhoods Decision Panel, 11 April 2012. 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 62



Strategic Landlord Assurance Framework/ Appendix 1 – Assurance Levels for Individual Reviews 

 
 

Page 1 of 2 

Audit Assurance 
Level 

Strategic 
Landlord 

AVH ENEHL WNWHL BITMO 

Corporate Governance Control  Good Acceptable Good Good 

Compliance      

Impact  Minor Minor Minor Minor 

Procurement Control  Good Good 
1
 Good 

Compliance  Good Limited 
1
  

Impact  Minor Minor 
1
 Minor 

Fire Safety Control  Limited Limited Acceptable Good 

Compliance  Limited Acceptable Acceptable Good 

Impact  Major Moderate Moderate Minor 

Gas Servicing Follow Up Control   Good   

Compliance   Good   

Impact   Minor   

Lettings Enforcement – Policy Review Control Good     

Compliance      

Impact Minor     

Lettings Enforcement – Compliance 
Testing Housing Options 

Control      

Compliance Limited 
2
     

Impact Moderate 
2
     

Appendix 1  

P
age 63



Strategic Landlord Assurance Framework/ Appendix 1 – Assurance Levels for Individual Reviews 

 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Audit Assurance 
Level 

Strategic 
Landlord 

AVH ENEHL WNWHL BITMO 

Lettings Enforcement – Date of 
Registration Quota 

Control      

Compliance  Acceptable Acceptable Limited Limited 

Impact  Minor Minor Moderate Minor 

Neighbourhood Management Control  Good    

Compliance      

Impact  Minor    

Tenancy Enforcement (Tenancy Fraud) Control Good   
1
  

Compliance    
1
  

Impact Minor   
1
  

Key Policies: Business Continuity Control     Acceptable 

Compliance      

Impact     Minor 

Key Policies: Scheme of Delegation Control   Acceptable   

Compliance   Limited   

Impact   Moderate   

 
Key 
1 
These reports are still to be issued. 

2 
This is a review of the Housing Options service which focused on the arrangements in place to ensure that the correct application process has been followed for the 

applicant(s) 

Appendix 1  

P
age 64



 

 

Report of the Director of Resources and Assistant Chief Executive, Customer 
Access & Performance 

Report to the Corporate Governance & Audit Committee 

Date: 4 July 2012 

Subject: Annual Assurance Report on Risk & Performance Management 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues 

1. This annual report provides Corporate Governance and Audit Committee with 
assurances on the strength of the Council’s risk and performance management 
arrangements and is an important source of evidence for the Annual Governance 
Statement due to be approved by the Committee in September.   

2. The arrangements have been further developed, improved and updated during 
2011/12.  Of particular note is the introduction of joint risk and performance reports 
which has enabled better use of the two sets of data and provided a more rounded 
view for senior officers and members.  The risk and performance information is also 
being used much more directly to inform and provide challenge within appraisals for 
senior officers.   

3. Compliance with the risk management policy and performance management 
framework is good although further work is planned in 2012/13 to continue to develop 
and improve the supporting arrangements. 

4. We can never be complacent, some risks lie outside our control, and there are cultural 
and behavioural elements to the successful adoption of these arrangements.  However, 
this report provides the Committee with a high level of assurance on the strength of the 
risk and performance management arrangements currently in place across the 
authority. 

Recommendations 

5. Corporate Governance & Audit Committee is asked to receive the annual report on the 
Council’s risk and performance management arrangements and note the assurances 
given.   

 

Report authors: Coral Main & 
Heather Pinches 

Tel:  51572 & 274638 

Agenda Item 12

Page 65



 

 

1. Purpose of this report 

1.1. This annual report provides Corporate Governance and Audit Committee with 
assurances on the strength of the Council’s risk and performance management 
arrangements and is an important source of evidence for the Annual Governance 
Statement due to be approved by the Committee in September.  It also enables the 
Committee to fulfil its role under the Council’s Risk Management Policy and the 
Committee’s own Terms of Reference for reviewing the ‘adequacy of the Council’s 
Corporate Governance arrangements (including matters such as internal control 
and risk management)’.   

2. Background information 

2.1. In 2011, in line with the move towards integrated strategic risk and performance 
reporting, Corporate Governance & Audit Committee agreed that the annual risk 
assurance report would be replaced with a new combined annual risk and 
performance assurance report.  This is the first joint report.   

2.2. The ‘main issues’ section of the report provides assurances on the Council’s Risk 
Management Policy and Performance Management Framework, discusses the key 
changes around our risk and performance arrangements in the last year and 
outlines future plans to further improve them.   

3. Main issues 

3.1. The strength of our risk and performance management arrangements stem from the 
authority’s Risk Management Policy and Performance Management Framework.  
The tables below give high-level assurance with respect to ensuring these are 
adequate, complied with and up to date.   

Risk Management 

Name of Policy Risk Management Policy 

Is it up to date? Yes: revised in 2011 

Is it fit for 
purpose? 

Yes: following extensive benchmarking and reviews against British and 
International Standards on Risk Management and other good practice guides, 
the Policy was updated last year, approved by the Corporate Risk Management 
Group and this Committee and endorsed by the Chief Executive and the 
Council Leader.  It was also reviewed by the Corporate Communications team 
to ensure it complied with ‘Plain English’ requirements. 

How is it 
communicated? 

When first launched, the 2011 version was publicised on the front page of the 
web Portal and ‘In Brief’ communications which are available to all Council staff 
with PC access.  It is also published on the Intranet on the Risk Management 
‘Interest Area’ page.  Focused discussions on the Policy were held with the 
members of the Corporate Risk Management Group prior to the document 
being finalised.  Specific risk management awareness sessions are provided by 
the Risk Management Unit to Corporate Governance & Audit Committee 
members and Executive members in line with their roles under the Policy and to 
council staff upon request.  

Is it routinely 
complied with? 

Yes: members of the Corporate Risk Management Group are responsible for 
ensuring compliance with the Policy within their directorates.  Formal 
statements have been provided by each directorate setting out how their 
arrangements link to, and support, this.   

How is it 
monitored? 

The policy will be reviewed annually by the corporate Risk Management Unit or 
as appropriate and in response to changes in legislation, Council policy and risk 
management standards.  Changes will be consulted upon. 

 

Page 66



 

 

Performance Management 

Name Performance Management Framework 

Is it up to date? Yes: the performance management arrangements were substantially 
overhauled in 2011 to take account of the new strategic plans approved in July 
2011.  The framework has been further revised during the year to build on the 
learning in implementing the arrangements.  Most recent revision was in Mar 
2012.   

Is it fit for 
purpose? 

Yes: the framework builds on the principles of good performance management 
as defined in a range of documents including the use of resources inspection 
criteria that were previously used to judge the council’s performance 
arrangements.  Most recently it has been updated to adopt the principles of 
Outcomes Based Accountability which the council and partnership agreed to 
adopt in July 2011 alongside the new plans.  Performance management 
arrangements are benchmarked from time to time with Core cities and West 
Yorkshire colleagues – most recently in early 2012. 

How is it 
communicated? 

The framework was co-produced by the corporate performance team in 
conjunction with performance leads across the directorates and key partners 
(through the Performance Board) with sign off in Sept 2011.  This means that 
the colleagues across the council and partnership who implement the 
framework have been able to influence these arrangements, have agreed them 
and clearly understand them.  Key elements of the framework were consulted 
on, and communicated to, a range of boards during development and approval 
process including Strategic Planning and Policy Board, the Corporate 
Leadership Team (CLT) and the Leeds Initiative (LI) Board.  The first 
performance reports to Scrutiny Boards using these new arrangements were 
also used as an opportunity to communicate the arrangements to them; as well 
as to seek feedback which has been used to further develop and refine the 
framework.  Performance Board has an ongoing role in implementing the 
framework and through this, and the other LI lead partnership meetings, 
communication has been ongoing throughout the year.  More recently the 
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee also reviewed the framework in 
January 2012. 

Is it routinely 
complied with? 

Yes: members of the Performance Board are responsible for ensuring 
compliance with the framework within their directorates.  Formal statements 
have been provided by each directorate setting out how their arrangements link 
to, and support, this.   

How is it 
monitored? 

The framework has remained in draft during 2011-12 to provide an opportunity 
to keep the arrangements under review during their first year of operation.  A 
number of minor changes have been implemented as a result of feedback and 
discussion at Performance Board.  Once the final performance reporting cycle 
for the year has been concluded the framework will be reviewed and finalised.  
Further review will occur on an annual basis or as the need arises. 

Combining Risk & Performance Management 

3.2. The main improvement in the arrangements during 2011/12 has been less around 
the two processes and more how the two sets of data have been used more 
smartly and efficiently.  A joint analysis is undertaken by the Council’s corporate 
risk management and performance management teams on a quarterly basis.  This 
is taken into a joint meeting of the Corporate Risk Management Group and 
Corporate Performance Board where it is reviewed and challenged.  This makes 
the most of the more forward looking risk assessment and the backward looking 
performance information and provides a more rounded picture for discussion with 
officers and members.   

3.3. In a similar vein both sets of information have been used to directly inform the 
Chief Executive’s and Directors’ appraisals.  The recent changes to the appraisals 

Page 67



 

 

process will further develop and embed this as a greater performance focus is 
brought into appraisals.   

Risk Management 

3.4. A range of risk registers are in place across the Council at directorate, service, 
budget, programme and project levels.  Specific assurances are given to this 
Committee and other member groups on financial risk management and on various 
projects upon request.  In the last year, a single report template has been 
established for all reports to a Committee (excluding Plans Panel or Licensing 
Committee), Executive Board and if a key or other delegated decision is required.  
This includes a section on ‘risk management’ in which officers must detail the key 
risks to that decision/policy/project etc. 

3.5. The most significant risks from these registers and reports are escalated as 
required, ultimately up to the corporate risk register.  The corporate risk register is 
a live document with risks moving up and down over the year, thereby evidencing 
the maturity of our review and challenge processes.  In January of this year, the 
corporate risk register was revised to ensure that the risks remained accurate, up 
to date and also that the risk descriptions made clear what the tangible risks to the 
authority and/or the city are.   

3.6. The review resulted in 6 ‘standing’ corporate risks that will always remain on the 
corporate risk register and for which annual assurance reports will be provided.  
These risks relate to Safeguarding Children, Safeguarding Adults, Financial 
Management, City Resilience (i.e. emergency planning), Council Resilience (i.e. 
business continuity management) and Health & Safety.   

3.7. The corporate risk register was last reviewed in May and currently contains 23 risks 
of which 7 have been given the highest ‘red’ rating.  This rating is a combination of 
the probability of the risk materialising and its potential impact if it did and so some 
risks score highly as a consequence of their impact score.  Detailed reports on the 
10 most significant corporate risks will be provided to the Executive Board on 18th 
July. 

3.8. Executive portfolio holders see the corporate risk register each quarter and the 
RMU engages with other Executive members and this Committee to review the 
corporate risk register as part of a risk management briefing each 
November/December.  Along with the RMU’s own horizon scanning exercises (for 
example, through media monitoring, review of reports to members and external 
assessment reports and benchmarking our risk register against those of other 
organisations, including those of the Core City local authorities), these processes 
should provide the Committee with a significant source of assurance on the rigour 
of the Council’s corporate risk register and that it accurately reflects both members’ 
and officers’ concerns.   

Performance Management 

3.9. The corporate performance management processes focus on the strategic 
priorities and ensure that a high level update on each of these is provided to key 
officers and Members including Corporate Leadership Team, Executive Board and 
Scrutiny.  These provide a comprehensive but succinct update which acts as a ‘can 
opener’ to enable further discussion, investigation, reports and action to explore 
any performance issues and to drive improvement. 

Page 68



 

 

3.10. The corporate performance management arrangements are supported by a range 
of other processes and arrangements that further strengthen, challenge and 
support the performance management framework, most notably: 

(a) Performance Snapshot – the corporate performance team continues to produce a 
quarterly snapshot as previously reported to the Committee.  This brings together 
a broader range of information, which includes all of the risk and performance 
information as well as HR, Internal Audit reports, external inspections etc.  This 
information is broken down by Director and Chief Officer and is provided as a tool 
to support the Chief Executive to inform his appraisals with Directors.   

(b) State of the City Report – the corporate performance management arrangements 
are deliberately focused on the small number of strategic priorities.  The risk of 
surprises is mitigated by the annual State of City Report which draws upon a much 
wider set of data and performance indicators and, therefore, provides a check that 
there are no performance surprises.  The first report was produced in autumn 2011 
and launched at a Council meeting to which a range of partners were also invited.  
The State of the City report will also inform an analysis of the cross-cutting issues 
such as child poverty or health inequalities as well as providing some evidence to 
support or challenge whether the city and council priorities are still the right ones. 

(c) An annual Equality and Diversity Position Statement was published in December 
2011. It supports the vision and city wide plans and provides an evidence base 
that will ensure that appropriate consideration takes place across the council and 
our strategic partnerships to address issues of inequality and poverty. In addition it 
also helps the council to meet our specific legal obligations outlined within the 
Equality Act 2010. 

(d) Appraisals – Appraisals are a cross council priority and a significant amount of 
work is underway to develop and improve these.  This includes new appraisal 
forms to better embed performance management and the values, implementation 
of a new system to track appraisals and personal development plans and 
introduction of a quality assurance process.  The corporate performance team is 
working with colleagues in HR to ensure that the corporate performance 
information is used to inform senior officers’ appraisals which will in turn support 
the development of a performance culture across the organisation.  

Future improvements for both risk and performance management 

3.11. Work is ongoing with Partnership Boards to assist them in developing more of a 
performance culture to build upon the performance reporting arrangements in the 
framework.  Good relationships and trust are crucial building blocks to effective 
performance management.  This cultural element of strong support and challenge 
between partners needs to be carefully supported and developed, especially for 
Boards which are new or substantially revised (e.g. the Health and Wellbeing 
Board).   

3.12. As referenced above, work will be continuing in 2012-13 with HR colleagues to 
further embed performance as a key element of appraisals including making best 
use of the performance data to support these discussions.   

3.13. The rollout of the corporate risk management system has been delayed. However 
the planned rollout in 2012/13 should further help streamline the recording and 
reporting processes. 

Page 69



 

 

4. Corporate Considerations  

4.1. Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1. As already identified above, the risk and performance arrangements were both 
revised during the last year with consultation and engagement of key stakeholders 
(officers and members) underpinning and informing the changes.  These new 
arrangements were discussed and agreed at a range of boards and forums 
including this Committee.  The reports have continued to be revised and amended 
during the year in response to feedback from the key audiences for the information. 

4.2. Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1. This is an assurance report and not a decision so due regard is not directly relevant.   

4.3. Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1. Under Principle 4 of the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance, the authority 
should take, ‘informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective 
scrutiny and risk management’.  The risk management framework we have in place 
in the authority supports this. 

4.3.2. Using a structured and consistent risk management approach to focus discussion, 
prioritise resources and enable justifiable risk-taking will help the successful delivery 
of the Council and City priorities.  The performance arrangements described in this 
report ensure that progress is monitored in their delivery. 

4.4. Resources and value for money  

4.4.1. These arrangements are resourced through existing teams across the council and 
the changes implemented during 2011/12 have no specific resource implications as 
they replace similar processes.  The new arrangements make both the risk and 
performance processes more effective through more joined up analysis and are 
more efficient, particularly for senior officers and members with a single joint risk 
and performance report.   

4.5. Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1. Without robust risk management arrangements, the Council could be in breach of 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 which require us to have ‘a sound system 
of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of that body’s functions and 
which includes arrangements for the management of risk.’  (Section 4.1)   

4.5.2. There is no specific statutory duty to have performance management arrangements 
but, alongside risk management, it is a core principle of good governance and as 
such assurance is required on them in order for this Committee to approve the 
authority’s Annual Governance Statement.  All performance information is published 
on the council and Leeds Initiative websites.  

4.5.3. This is an assurance report and not a decision so is not subject to call in. 

4.6. Risk Management 

4.6.1. Without effective risk and performance management arrangements, there is a 
danger that the most significant risks and issues that could impact upon the Council 
and Leeds are not properly identified and managed.   

Page 70



 

 

5. Conclusions 

5.1. The council’s risk and performance management arrangements have been further 
developed, improved and updated during 2011/12.  Of particular note is the 
introduction of joint risk and performance reports which has enabled better use of 
the two sets of data and provided a more rounded view for senior officers and 
Executive portfolio holders.  The risk and performance information is also being 
used much more directly to inform and provide challenge within appraisals for 
senior officers.   

5.2. Compliance with the risk management policy and performance management 
framework is good although further work is planned in 2012/13 to continue to 
develop and improve the supporting arrangements.   

5.3. While we can never be complacent, and some risks lie outside our control, this 
report provides the Committee with a high level of assurance on the strength of the 
risk and performance management arrangements currently in place across the 
authority. 

6. Recommendations 

6.1. Corporate Governance & Audit Committee is asked to receive the annual report on 
the Council’s risk and performance management arrangements and note the 
assurances given. 

7. Background documents1 

• Risk Management Policy (2011) and Report of the Director of Resources to 
Corporate Governance & Audit Committee, ‘Risk Management Policy 
Revision’ (30/9/11) 

• Performance Management Framework (Mar 2012) and Report of the Chief 
Officer (Intelligence & Improvement) to Corporate Governance & Audit 
Committee, ‘Performance Management Update’ (23/1/12) 

• City Priority Plan 2011-15 and Council Business Plan 2011-15 
• Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 

 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of Director of Resources 

Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 

Date: 4th July 2012 

Subject: Work Programme 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. Members are requested to consider whether they wish to add any items to the work 

programme. 

2. The draft work programme is attached at Appendix 1. 

Recommendations 

3. Members are asked to note the draft work programme and advise officers of any 

additional items they wish to add. 

1     Purpose of this report 

1.1 The Purpose of this report is to notify Members of the Committee of the draft work 
programme. The draft  work programme is attached at Appendix 1  

2 Background information 

2.1 The work programme provides information about the future items for the Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee agenda, when items will be presented and which 
officer will be responsible for the item.  

3 Main issues 

3.1 Members are requested to consider whether they wish to add any items to the work 
programme 

 Report author:  P Garnett 

Tel:  (0113) 395 1632 

Agenda Item 13

Page 73



 

 

3.2 The draft work programme is attached at Appendix 1  

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 This report consults Members on the content of the work programme of the 
Committee. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 No significant issues. 

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 This report helps support the implementation of the Code of Corporate Governance. 

4.4 Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 It is in the best interests of the Council to have sound control arrangements in place 
to ensure effective use of resources, these should be regularly reviewed and 
monitored as such the work programme directly contributes to this.  

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 This report is not an executive function and is not subject to call in. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 By the Committee being assured that effective controls are in place throughout the 
Council the work programme promotes the management of risk at the Council. 

4.6.2 The work programme adopts a risk based approach to the significant governance 
arrangements of the Council. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 The work programme of the Committee should be reviewed regularly and be updated 
appropriately in line with the risks currently facing the Council. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members are asked to note the work programme and advise officers of any 
additional items they wish to add. 

 

Page 74



Appendix 1 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE                         

WORK PROGRAMME   
  

ITEM DESCRIPTION RESPONSIBLE OFFICER 
 

28th September 2012  

Annual Report: Corporate 
Decision Making 
Framework. 

To receive a report presenting a commentary on compliance with 
Statutory and Constitutional requirements for decision making 
(including aspects relating to the Forward Plan, Call In, Access to 
Information, evidencing equality and consultation considerations). 
 
 

Principle Corporate Governance 
Officer 
Kate Sadler 

KPMG – Report to those 
charged with governance  

To receive a report summarising the results of the 2011/12 audit  
including key issues and recommendations raised as a result of our 
observations 
 

Chief Officer (Financial 
Management)  
Doug Meeson 

Annual Internal Audit 
Report  
 

To receive the Annual Internal Audit Report  Chief Officer (Audit and Risk) 
Tim Pouncey 

Local Government 
Ombudsman’s Annual 
Letter 
 

To receive the annual letter from the Local Government Ombudsman. 
 
(This report is on the agenda as part of the Committee’s Annual work 
programme) 
 

Chief Officer Customer Services  
Paul Broughton 
 

Capital Programme 
Approvals 

To receive a report updating the Committee with regards to the 
implementation of the new capital programme approvals framework 
(report added to the work programme on 23rd January 2012) 
 
 

Chief Officer (Financial 
Development) 
Maureen Taylor 

Annual Governance 
Statement 

To receive the Annual Governance Statement  
 
 
 
 
 

Head of Governance Services  
Andy Hodson 

P
age 75



 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

WORK PROGRAMME  
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION RESPONSIBLE OFFICER 
 

Fighting Fraud Locally To receive a report concerning the Council’s approach to achieving 
the objectives of ‘Fighting Fraud Locally’ 

Chief Officer (Audit and Risk) 
Tim Pouncey 
 
 
 
 

9th November 2012  

KPMG – Annual Audit 
Letter  

To receive a report providing a summary of the results of the  audit for 
2011/12 

Chief Officer (Financial 
Management)  
Doug Meeson 
 

Local Public Audit  To receive a report updating the Committee on the latest 
developments from the department for Communities and Local 
Government with regards to Local Public Audit  

Chief Officer (Audit and Risk)  
Tim Pouncey 

21st January 2013 

Transformation of 
Procurement  

To receive report updating the Committee on the transformation of 
procurement  

Chief Officer Public Private 
Partnership Unit and 
Procurement 
Dave Outram 
 

KPMG – Audit Plan To receive a report seeking Approval of the Audit Plan  Chief Officer (Financial 
Management)  
Doug Meeson 
 

Internal Audit quarterly 
report  

To receive the Internal Audit quarterly report Chief Officer (Audit and Risk)  
Tim Pouncey 

27th March 2013  

P
age 76



 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

WORK PROGRAMME  
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION RESPONSIBLE OFFICER 
 

Leeds City Region – Local 
Enterprise Partnership 
Governance 

To receive a report updating the Committee on the Governance 
arrangements surrounding the Leeds City Region 

Chief Officer (Localities and 
Partnerships)  

Annual Financial 
Management  Report  

To receive the annual report reviewing the  Financial Planning and 
Management Arrangements at the Council 

Chief Officer (Financial 
Management)  
Doug Meeson 

KPMG Certification of 
Grants and Returns 

To receive a report certifying grants and returns Chief Officer (Financial 
Management)  
Doug Meeson 

22nd April 2013  

Annual Report of the 
Committee 

To receive the draft Annual Report  Chief Officer (Audit and Risk) 
Tim Pouncey 

Internal Audit quarterly 
report  

To receive the Internal Audit quarterly report Chief Officer (Audit and Risk)  
Tim Pouncey 

Un-scheduled items for 2012/13 

Financial Procedure Rules To receive a report reviewing the success of the revised FPRs. Chief Officer (Audit and Risk) 
Tim Pouncey 

Assurances of the 
process by Which 
Planning Decisions Are 
Taken 

To receive the Annual report providing Assurance of the process by 
Which Planning Decisions Are Taken 

Phil Crabtree  
(Chief Planning Officer) 

 

P
age 77



P
age 78

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	8 KPMG - INTERIM Audit Report
	LCC 11-12 Interim Report to Committee APX 1

	9 The Statement of Accounts 2011/12
	10 Role of the People Plan in Corporate Governance
	People Plan 2012 - 15 final version Appendix 1
	Council Wide Scorecard 2012 - 13 appendix 2

	11 Council Housing Assurance Framework 2011-12
	Appendix 1 220612

	12 Annual Assurance Report on Risk & Performance Management
	13 Work Programme
	Live Work Programe


